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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Innovationpay Group Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are
no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EITR|ES

The board of directors (the “Board”) of China Innovationpay
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) is pleased to announce the audited results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2014.

During the year under review, the Group continued operating
prepaid cards business. The operating environment for the year
had been complicated with social and economic uncertainties.
Slow consumption and global economic growth is expected
in 2015. The Group is going to be cautious to meet with the
challenges ahead and continue to focus the third party payment
industry, and will also grasp every opportunity against the
strong market competition striving to create more fruitful value
to the shareholders.

On 26 November 2014, Beijing Gaohuitong Commercial
Management Company Limited (“Gaohuitong”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, obtained the approval from
the payment and settlement division of the operations of PBOC
and was permitted to operate the virtual cards of "= [E el
241F-K" in China countrywide on a pilot basis. The virtual card
is in alliance with industry trends and development of prepaid
cards business.

By way of capital injection to Beijing ONECOMM Technology
Company Limited, the Group acquired the research and
development as well as the production capability of the
integrated intelligent POS machines. This will help to improve
the Group's prepaid card industry chain. At the same time,
with this new production and R&D capabilities, the costs and
expenses to be spent on soliciting merchant users will be
decreased, especially for "= EiBefiZ4 " resulting in the
positive and healthy development of this business.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my gratitude to all shareholders, investors, customers
and business partners for their strong support to our Group.
| would also like to express our sincere appreciation to the
management team and staff of the Group for their dedicated
efforts and contributions.

Mr. Guan Guisen
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DT

OVERVIEW

The Group consists of the Company, Country Praise Enterprises
Limited (“CPE") and its subsidiaries (collectively the “"CPE
Group”). The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in four segments. Namely
(i) General trading: trading of mobile phones, computers,
communication equipments, currency sorters and other goods;
(i) Prepaid card business: provision of third party payment
services and consultancy services; and marketing and sale of
consumer goods in form of prepaid gift cards in the People’s
Republic of China (“the PRC"); (iii) Travellers related services:
provision of air-ticketing services and related customers
services; and (iv) Onecomm — provision of third party payment
system solution and sales of integrated smart point of sales
("POS") devices.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The prepaid card business segment, as the main business
of the Group, gains most attentions and investments. It has
its main product named “SEBeiNLE St which focus on
provision of convenient, quick and favorable payment services
for individual consumers, and provision of payment, customers
management and marketing services for merchants. During the
year, based on the expansion of the volume of the contracted
merchants, the Group also distributed more POS machine
to the contracted merchants, optimizing the acceptance
environment of " SEBe K",

On 26 November 2014, Beijing Gaohuitong Commercial
Management Company Limited (“Gaohuitong”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, obtained the approval from
the payment and settlement division of the operations of PBOC
and was permitted to operate the virtual cards of "= [E el
244F-K" in China countrywide on a pilot basis. The virtual card
is in alliance with industry trends and development of prepaid
cards business.

By way of capital injection to Beijing ONECOMM Technology
Company Limited, the Group acquired the research and
development as well as the production capability of the
integrated intelligent POS machines. This will help to improve
the Group's prepaid card industry chain. At the same time,
with this new production and R&D capabilities, the costs and
expenses to be spent on soliciting merchant users will be
decreased, especially for “=EiBefiZ4SF" resulting in the
positive and healthy development of this business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEWR DT

As mentioned in Third Quarterly Report of 2014, it is
management strategy to scale down the general trading
segment. As a result, the revenue from the general trading
segment continue to decrease and in 2014 the Company had
made impairment of goodwill of approximately HK$53,323,000
(2013: HK$164,794,000).

During the year, no impairment of goodwill on the prepaid card
business segment has been made (2013: HK$63,993,000).

During the year of 2014, the Company has been actively
seeking further business development. The Group will strive
to integrate the various business sectors in the process of
development, expecting to generate the integrated effect and
bring the Group more benefits.

For 2014, the PRC Tax Reform (i.e. replacing “Business Tax"
with “Value Added Tax") has no further effect to the Group. No
additional provision was provided (2013: RMB2.6 million). There
will be no further effect from 2015 onwards.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group's turnover
was approximately HK$81,222,000 (2013: HK$142,896,000), a
43% decrease as compared to last year. The Group recorded a
loss attributable to shareholders of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$122,724,000 (2013: loss HK$279,352,000).
The gross profit margin of the Group recorded 43% (2013:
35%). Of the said loss, HK$53,323,000 (2013: HK$228,787,000)
was attributable to impairment of goodwill.

SALES AND MARKETING

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2014, the Group
adopted more-client-oriented promotional strategies to
promote the products, sales and marketing expenses recorded
HK$31,181,000 (2013:HK$19,911,000), resulting a 56.6%
increase over the same period last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DT

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

On 10 October 2014, Beijing Tiantongsaibo Information
Technology Co., Ltd. (Beijing TTSB, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company), dt R —IG#INEHRBR AT (Beijing
ONECOMM Technology Company Limited) (the “Target
Company”) and the Existing Shareholders of the Target
Company entered into the Capital Contribution Agreement
pursuant to which Beijing TTSB conditionally agreed to invest
RMB8,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$10,004,000) in
the registered capital of the Target Company by way of cash.
Upon Completion, Beijing TTSB shall be entitled to 51% of (i)
the voting right at general meetings of the Target Company, (ii)
the total amount of dividend distributed by the Target Company;
and (iii) the remaining assets of the Target Company upon
liquidation.

On 10 October 2014, the Company and Mr. Sun (one of the
Existing Shareholders of the Target Company) entered into
the Incentive Agreement pursuant to which the Company
shall conditionally reward Mr. Sun with an aggregate amount
not exceeding RMB25,750,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$32,492,523) based on the level of Net Profit for the six
months ending 31 December 2014 and each of the two years
ending 31 December 2016, by way of issue and allotment of
the Incentive Shares.

Details of Share Transaction has been disclosed in the
Announcement by the Company on 10 October 2014.

Pursuant to a shareholders contribution agreement dated 19
November 2014, Beijing Tiantongsaibo Information Technology
Co., Ltd. ("Beijing TTSB") together with four other companies
including /&R & E A a], jointly established BB EE SR in
accordance with “The Company Law of the People’s Republic
of China” and the requirements of the”Pilot Administrative
Measures for Consumer Finance Companies” ((EZ4aA A
HBIEIRHEE)Y) of Chinese Banking Regulatory Commission
("CBRC"). The capital contribution made by Beijing TTSB was
RMB50 million (equivalent to approximately HK$63.1 million), at
a capital contribution ratio of 10%.

The main business of /& EHE 4 & are: (1) personal consumer
loans; (2) acceptance of deposits from domestic shareholders
and their subsidiaries; (3) borrowings from domestic financial
institutions; (4) issuance of financial bonds upon approval;
(5) domestic inter-bank lending; (6) consultancy and agency
business in relation to consumer finance; (7) agency sales
of insurance products in relation to consumer loans; (8)
fixed-income securities investment business; and (9) other
businesses as approved by CBRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEWR DT

As a capital contributor to EEH &4 &t Beijing TTSB's
wholly-owned subsidiary, Beijing Gaohuitong Commercial
Management Company Limited Jt R S fERmESIEBRE LT,
which holds a “license of payment operations”, will provide all-
faceted payment services for the operations of GFEE 4 7,
including the development and launch of integrated intelligent
POS, the operations and management of prepaid card system
and the development of relevant payment software. The
prepaid cards business of the Company would also accelerate
the accumulation of individual users and expand the acceptance
of the prepaid cards, through the cooperation with /B8 &4
@k, This will actively stimulate the development of the prepaid
cards business of the Company.

MAJOR EVENTS

After the trading hours of the Stock Exchange on 12 February
2014, the Company and the Placing Agent entered into the
Placing Agreement that the Company has conditionally agreed
to place through the Placing Agent, on a best endeavours basis,
up to 200,000,000 Placing Shares, to not less than six Placees
who and whose ultimate beneficial owners are Independent
Third Parties at a price of HK$0.64 per Placing Share. The
completion of the Placing took place on 20 February 2014
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Placing
Agreement.

In May 2014, the Company entered into a strategic cooperation
framework agreement with Orange Sky Golden Harvest
Cinemas (China) Co., Ltd ("Orange Sky Golden Harvest”,
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Orange Sky Golden
Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange) in order to motivate the application
and development of the prepaid cards in the cinema industry.
Both parties will consolidate their respective technologies,
channels and operating resources and will jointly issue and
operate co-branded prepaid card products so as to provide
payment services covering numerous payment methods and
more diversified membership services for members of “Orange
Sky Golden Harvest”. The cooperation will set an active and
positive role for expanding the industrial application of the
Group's prepaid cards and the optimization of the acceptance
environment of prepaid cards.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DT

On 28 June 2012 Beijing Gaohuitong Commercial Management,
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company obtained
the Certificate for Approval for Payment Business from PBOC
pursuant to the Administrative Measures of Payment Services
for Non-Financial Institutions {3E4& BIHHE X RIS B IR I
7%) and the Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the
Administrative Measures of Payment Services for Non-Financial
Institutions  FE& B S (M ARTS EIRILEE i 4BAI)

In July 2013, the PBOC further approved to Beijing Gaohuitong
Commercial Management to operate the business of “Online
Payment (National)” and “Issuance and Acceptance of Prepaid
Cards”, covering Beijing, Shanghai, Zhejiang, Guangdong and
Liaoning Provinces.

On 26 November 2014, the payment and settlement
division of the operations office (&% E323f) of PBOC has
released a reply document to Beijing Gaohuitong Commercial
Management (”Gaohuitong”) for their approval to Gaohuitong
(the “Approval”). The Approval allowed Gaohuitong permitted
to operate the card of “SE@eifZ4(FK" in China countrywide
on a pilot basis. The card is to be used for individuals, small
value (single card amount not more than RMB1,000), and is
a convenience form of a virtual prepaid cards. The Company
and Gaohuitong will strictly comply with the requirements of
the Approval, positive, safe, and orderly conduct of this new
business under the management guidance of PBOC.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$162,595,000 (2013:
HK$109,639,000).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has bank borrowings of
HK$625,000.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND PLEDGE OF
ASSETS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has no material capital
commitments or substantial pledges on its assets.

REZZE—"FXA-TN\BARRFHEEEE
MEBARILRSEARFEER  RIEGEE
BB NIREEERE) R(FFE BB
MRBEEWEZERAA) - MHBEARE
TEEER AR ARFR SN EBIFAE
EBTEARRITRE

R-B-Z4+A LRSERBLEE
B (50 B AR SRAT 6 18 I B A
R (28) | E R AR TN BT R | %
% REBZLRT - LET WA &
RAMETS -

R-ZE—NE+—A=+X<A  {tRSER
AEEE((SERDEINTFRARRITES
EEDINEEENEB([ZME] - ZiE
REEEsEREEBEANREHAN =
PEI o (AT R IR - AT IEEMIE
AF/NEE(BEReBETBBARK,0007T)
AR - 2N FR—EBERNEREAE
R ApRESEREFRHARRITHE
BERETEER B  AFEEE—
RIZER o

MRERRABES
R-ZTE—NF+_A=+—H  xEB IR
% RIS EEWH 5162,595,000% T (=
—=4F :109,639,000/& 7T ) °

R-ZE-—NE+_A=+—8  X£EEAR
1T #1625,00058 7T ©

BEXAEREERN

RZE—NNF+_A=+—H KEBWE
E{a] B R E ANEIE N EE B BRI -

HEEF X NEEERAR ¢ —T—FFR 9



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEWR DT

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities.

As at 31 December 2014, the total current assets over the total
current liabilities was 3.96 times (2013: 2.57 times). The ratio
of all debts to total assets was 0 (2013: 0). As most sales are
made in Renminbi, no hedging arrangement is made to offset
the exposures to fluctuations in exchange rates.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Since the Group's operations are mainly located in the PRC and
its transactions, monetary assets and liabilities are primarily
denominated in Renminbi, there is minimal exposure to foreign
currency risks. The Group monitors its foreign currency risks
and will consider hedging significant currency exposures should
the need arises.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 28 trademarks (2013:
12) registered in China and Hong Kong, of which all trademarks
have been approved.

At the same time, the Group had 60 software copyrights (2013:
50) and 5 patents (2013: 0) in China.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has approximately 332
employees (2013: 257). Employees are remunerated according
to their performance and work experience. In addition to
basic salaries and retirement scheme, staff benefits include
performance bonus and employee share options. The Directors
believe that good quality of its employees is a company asset
which affects growth and improves profitability. The Group
recognizes the importance of staff training and thus regularly
provides internal and external training for its staff to enhance
their skills and knowledge.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has no material
outstanding litigation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DT

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

The Company completed the acquisition of CPE and its
subsidiaries on 28 February 2011. Beijing Gaohuitong
Commercial Management Co. Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, obtained the Certificates for
Approval for Payment Business issued by the People’s Bank
of China on 28 June 2012 and was further approved to add
new geographical areas for the business of online payment
and the issuance and acceptance of prepaid cards in July 2013.
A payment system has been established by the Company on
the basis of prepaid cards business, which incorporates online
and offline payment scenarios with various payment methods
including magnetic stripe cards, QR code.

Under the macro environment that the online financial and
payment industry is undergoing robust development, the
Company strives to deliver more comprehensive online and
offline payment services, marketing services and customer
management services to the merchants based on the prepaid
card business and with unremitted innovations. The Company
will focus on the promotion of “SEEeMEEFFK", which
provides consumers with fast, convenient and favourable online
and offline payment services. Meanwhile, payment services,
customer management services, internet and mobile phone-
based marketing services will be delivered to the merchants
through the integrated POS terminals deployed by the
merchants.

As one of the major development trend in the industry,
the virtual prepaid card can effectively resolves the
problems that exist in the O20 situation. The Group sees
the "=EEMeNLE{I K" business as our core business in
the coming years. The Group will gradually launch the card
throughout the country by region and stages. On one hand
the Group will continue to enhance the card acceptance
environment, including soliciting more merchant users as
well as promoting the usage of the integrated intelligent POS
machines. On the other hand, the Group will also actively
promote this payment solution to penetrate into different
industries, for example, the consumer finance industry etc..
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEWR DT

Building on its effort to promote “SE@eMLf I K", the
Company will continue to create new derivative products in
order to offer more professional, diversified marketing and
payment services. The Company will also optimize its overall
payment system to provide more convenient and favourable
payment services to the customers. The rapid development
of the industry and the continuous business expansion and
consolidation of the Company will bring positive catalyst to the
future development and profitability of the Company.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 6 February 2015, the Company and Greater China Select
Fund (“Subscriber”) entered into a Subscription Agreement
("Agreement”). Pursuant to the Agreement, the Company
agreed to issue 530,000,000 unlisted warrants at an issue
price of HK$0.002 per warrant. Each warrant entitled the
Subscriber for one ordinary share of HK$0.01 each at an initial
subscription price of HK$0.72 per share at any time within 5
years commencing from the date of issue of warrants.

On 5 March 2015, the Company and the Subscriber entered
into a Supplemental Agreement (“Supplemental Agreement”)
on 5 March 2015, pursuant to the which, completion of the
Agreement shall be subject to and conditional upon passing the
resolution(s) at a general meeting of the Company to approve
the Agreement and the long stop date for fulfillment of the
conditions precedent under the Agreement has been postponed
to 31 May 2015.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRE

Pursuant to the Rule 18.44 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”), the Board is pleased to
present the corporate governance report for the year ended
31 December 2014. This report highlights the key corporate
governance practices of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to protect the interests of the
shareholders of the Company. The Company’s corporate
governance practices are based on principles and code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
("Code”) in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company complied with the Code for the year ended 31
December 2014.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group adopted the required standard of dealings set out
in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions in securities
of the Company. Upon the Company’s specific enquiry, each
director had confirmed that during the year ended 31 December
2014, they had fully complied with the required standard of
dealings and there was no event of non-compliance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for overall management and control
of the Company. Its main roles are to provide leadership and to
approve strategic policies and plans with a view to enhancing
shareholder value. All directors carry out their duties in good
faith and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
taking decisions objectively, and acting in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders at all times.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the Company
Secretary and senior management, with a view to ensuring that
Board procedures and all applicable laws and regulations are
followed. Any director may request independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making reasonable request to the Board.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those
that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

As at 31 December 2014, the Board comprised four Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors.
Details of biographical details of directors and senior
management are set out on page 24 to 30 of this annual report.

The Board complies with the minimum requirements of the
GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors and one of them has the
appropriate professional qualifications required under Rule 5.05
of the GEM Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRE

Board Meetings

The Board has adopted good corporate governance practices
and procedures, formal notice of at least 14 days will be given
in respect of a regular meeting. For special board meeting,
reasonable notice will be given. Directors participated, either
in person or through other electronic means of communication
in the Board meetings. The Board meets regularly at least
four times every year. The directors participated in person or
through electronic means of communication. All notices of
board meetings were given to all directors, who were given an
opportunity to include matters in the agenda for discussion. The
finalised agenda and accompanying board papers were sent to
all directors at least 3 days prior to the meeting.

During regular meetings of the Board, the directors discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group. The Board has reserved for its
decision or consideration matters covering overall Group
strategy, major acquisitions and disposals, annual budgets,
annual and interim results, approval of major capital transactions
and other significant operational and financial matters.

All directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major
changes that may affect the Group's businesses, including
relevant rules and regulations. Directors can also seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at
the Company’s expense, if necessary. The Company Secretary
records the proceedings of each board meeting in detail by
keeping detailed minutes, including all decisions by the Board
together with concerns raised and dissenting views expressed
(if any). All minutes are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on request by any director.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRE

The Board held four board meetings in 2014. Attendance of the

directors were as follows:

Name of Directors
BEENE

il::3

BEEeN T -WNFHRBITONSHE - 28
EEHESEHEOT

i

Attendance
HERE

Executive Directors

BITES

Mr. Guan Guisen

BAERLE

Dr. Lei Chunxiong

BAEE L

Mr. Cao Chunmeng

BEHBEE

Mr. Yan Xiaotian (Appointed on 24 December 2014)
BERLE(EZT—NF T+ A= THEEZT)

Independent non-executive Directors
B IEITES

Dr. Fong Chi Wah

HEEEL

Mr. Wang Zhongmin

FARARSE

Mr. Gu Jiawang

AEHEE

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate
and not performed by the same individual to avoid power
being concentrated in any one individual. The Chairman of
the Company is primarily responsible for the leadership and
effective running of the Board and ensuring that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and
constructive manner, whereas the Chief Executive Officer is
primarily responsible for the running of the Group's business
and implementation of the Group's strategies in achieving the
overall commercial objectives.

The Chairman also encourages all directors, including the

independent non-executive directors, to actively participate in
all board and committee meetings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRE

Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

All directors are appointed for a specific term. All the executive
directors and independent non-executive directors of the
Company are engaged on a service contract of appointment
with the Company for a term of three years.

Besides, the procedures and process of appointment, re-
election and removal of directors are laid down in the
Company's Bye-laws. According to Bye-laws, all directors of
the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and are eligible for re-election at annual
general meetings of the Company. Any new director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall submit himself for re-
election by shareholders at the first general meeting and any
new director appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board
shall submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at
the next following annual general meeting.

In accordance with Bye-laws, Mr. Yan Xiaotian, Mr. Wang
Zhongmin and Mr. Gu Jiawang shall retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. The Board recommends their
re-appointment. The Company’s circular, sent together with this
annual report, contains detail information of the above three
directors as required by the GEM Listing Rules.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers
that all the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.

Directors’ Training

All directors should keep abreast of the responsibilities as
a director, and of the conduct and business activities of
the Company. The Company is responsible for arranging
and funding suitable training for its directors. Accordingly,
the Company has put in place a training and development
programme for the directors including: an on-going training and
professional development programme for directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRE

The Company regularly organizes the seminars for the directors.
In addition, individual Directors also participated in other
courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director or further enhancement of their professional
development by way of online aids or reading relevant
materials.

All executive and independent non-executive Directors had
provided the Company Secretary with their training records for
the year under review.

Directors’ Code of Ethics

The directors observe a code of ethics (the “Code of Ethics”)
which is formulated and adopted to enhance the standard of
corporate governance and corporate behaviour. The principles
on which the Code of Ethics relies are those that concern
transparency, integrity, accountability and corporate social
responsibility taking into account the relevant provisions and
requirements by the governing authorities.

Continuing Connected Transactions

The Company did not have material transactions which fell
under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” which required disclosure under the
GEM Listing Rule Chapter 20.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 30 June
2005. The Remuneration Committee is with the responsibility
of approving the remuneration policy for all Directors and senior
executives. The Remuneration Committee members include a
majority of independent non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Guan Guisen
Dr. Lei Chunxiong

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Fong Chi Wah

Mr. Wang Zhongmin — Chairman of Remuneration
Committee

Mr. Gu Jiawang
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

i

BERWME

All Remuneration Committee members met at the end of the
year for the determination of the remuneration packages of
Directors and senior management of the Group. In addition, the
Remuneration Committee members also meet as and when
required to consider remuneration related matters. The works
carried out by the Remuneration Committee are set out below:

(a)

to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure of remuneration of
Directors and the senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration;

to determine the specific remuneration packages of
all executive Directors and the senior management,
including benefits in kind, provident/retirement
benefits and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment, and make recommendations
to the Board of the remuneration of independent non-
executive Directors;

to review and approve performance-based remuneration
by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board from time to time;

to review and approve the compensation payable to
executive Directors, senior management in connection
with any loss or termination of their office or appointment
to ensure that such compensation is determined in
accordance with relevant contractual terms and that such
compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive for the
Company; and

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that such arrangements are
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that any compensation payment is otherwise
reasonable and appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 30 June
2005. The Nomination Committee made recommendations
to the Board on the appointment of Directors and the senior
management personnel with reference to certain guidelines
as endorsed by the Nomination Committee members. The
Nomination Committee members include all directors as
follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Guan Guisen
Dr. Lei Chunxiong

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Fong Chi Wah

Mr. Wang Zhongmin

Mr. Gu Jiawang — Chairman of Nomination Committee

All Nomination Committee members met at the end of the
year.

The works carried out by the Nomination Committee members
are set out below:

(a) to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) and to make
recommendations to the Board after such review;

(b)  to assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors, having regard to the requirements
under the GEM Listing Rules; and

(c) to make recommendations to the Board on relevant

matters relating to the appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors who possess the appropriate business
and financial experience and skills to understand financial
statements. The current Committee is chaired by Dr. Fong Chi
Wah, and the other Audit Committee members are Mr. Wang
Zhongmin and Mr. Gu Jiawang. Under its terms of reference
for audit committee passed under a directors’ resolution dated
30 June 2005, is required, amongst other things, to oversee
the relationship with the external auditors, to review the
Group's preliminary results, interim results and annual financial
statements and to monitor compliance with statutory and listing
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it determines is necessary and to perform any investigations.

The Audit Committee members held four meetings in 2014.
Name of Directors Attendance
MEHEE R E

Independent non-executive Dr. Fong Chi Wah — Chairman of Audit Committee 4/4

Directors FEEBLT -—FHZTEEFE

BN IEHITES Mr. Wang Zhongmin 4/4
TRARSE
Mr. Gu Jiawang 4/4
AL

Financial Statements Bt ig R &

The Audit Committee held meetings to discuss the Group's
quarterly results, interim results, preliminary results
announcement and Annual Report. The Audit Committee
reviews and discusses the management'’s reports and
representations with a view to ensuring that the Group's
consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and compliance with the GEM Listing
Rules and other legal requirements.

The Audit Committee and the Company’'s external auditors
have reviewed the Company's financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2014 and has provided advice and
comments thereon.

The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and retention of the external
auditors.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Group engaged RSM Nelson Wheeler to provide services
in connection with the audit of the Company’s consolidated
financial statements and other professional services.

Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable
to the Company’s auditors, RSM Nelson Wheeler, is set out as
follows:

SN S R% Bk
AEEERABESE(FE) RHDEHMH®
BRREHHRERACEERBEER
7% o

BB AT &

EREFEA - BN EAARRREA D E
E(HFB)STHEHOMIST

Fees paid/payable

RIS

HK$'000

Services rendered e ENER FExT
Audit services ZERTS 1,155
Non-audit services* FEAZBARTS 12
Total: {A%E - 1,167
* The non-audit service fees paid/payable to the external auditors ~ * B ERINRIZEE R SSRGS E - B

were for advice on taxation matters and for preparation, review
and submission of tax returns.

DIRECTORS’ AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries, in accordance with
accounting principle generally accepted in Hong Kong. The
Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation of the financial
statements and the auditors’ responsibilities are set out in the
Independent Auditor’'s Report in this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

An internal control system, being an integral part of the
Company’s operations, is a process effected by the Board and
management team to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the effectiveness and efficiency of operations in achieving
the established corporate objectives, safeguarding Company
assets, providing reliable financial reporting, and complying with
applicable laws and regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRE

The Board is responsible for making appropriate assertions on
the adequacy of internal controls over financial reporting and the
effectiveness of disclosure controls and procedures. Through
the Audit Committee, it regularly reviews the effectiveness of
the system.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company assists the Board by
ensuring good information flow within the Board and that Board
policy and procedures are followed. The company secretary is
also responsible for advising the Board on governance matters.
As an employee of the Company, Mr. Fung Kwok Leung, the
company secretary of the Company, has undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training to update his
skills and knowledge in 2014.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information
about the Company's performance to shareholders through
the publication of quarterly reports and annual report. In
addition to dispatching circulars, notices and financial reports
to shareholders, additional information is also available to
shareholders on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company, which is updated regularly. The annual general
meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to raise
comments and exchange views with the Board. Shareholders
are encouraged to attend annual general meetings for which
the Company gives at least 21 days’ notice. The Chairman,
Directors and external auditors are available to answer
qguestions on the Company’s businesses at the meeting. The
Company values feedback from shareholders on its effort to
promote transparencies and foster investor relationships.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEB 2 BEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Guan Guisen, aged 51, joined the Company on 28 February
2011. Mr. Guan acts as an executive Director, Chairman of
the Company. Mr. Guan obtained his bachelor degree from
China Central University of Finance and Economics (Ff SR B 48 K
E4) in 1984 and a master degree from Graduate School of the
People's Bank of China (FBI ARRTTHFTAER) in 1987. Mr.
Guan has over twenty years of senior management experience
in finance, property development and investment in the PRC.
Mr. Guan was a deputy president of Hainan Technology and
Industry Group (I TEE) from 1990 to 1994, a deputy
president of Taihe Holdings Co., Limited (K&IZIXER A 7))
from 2001 to 2003 and a director of China Union Pay Data
Services Co., Limited (SEEEEIEAR A7) from 2002 to 2005.
From August 2008, Mr. Guan became the chairman of Beijing
Dongsen Jinbi Investment Consultancy Co., Limited (it &
R BIEEZBAR AT, And from August 2008 to October
2014, he acted as a director of China Union Loyalty Co., Limited
(EEFEmEFAR2AR]). From April 2010 to March 2011, Mr.
Guan became the chairman of Beijing Shangyin Investment
Consultancy Co., Limited (B iR @il (3L R)IREHABR LA,
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEBBEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Dr. Lei Chunxiong, aged 49, joined the Company on 28
February 2011. Dr. Lei acts as an executive Director of the
Company. He graduated from Hunan Chenzhou Normal
Institute (HEHEMETE) in 1983 and obtained a master degree
from Tianjin Normal University (K;ZEN&EIKE) in 1991 and a
doctoral degree from Graduate School of People’s Bank of
China (PR ARIETTHIZEAER) in 1996. Dr. Lei has over 20
years of experience in banking and electronic payment sectors.
He worked as a deputy section head, section head and deputy
department head of Bank of China, Hunan branch from 1991 to
1997. From February 1997 to July 2001, Dr. Lei worked for the
head office of China Merchants Bank as an assistant general
manager of treasury planning department, research department
and an deputy general manager of individual banking
department. He joined China Unionpay Co., Ltd. (Ff B ERE AR (7
AR/ R]) in August 2001 until March 2010 initially as its general
manager of the strategic development department and later
as its assistant president. In between his tenure with China
Unionpay Co., Ltd. (R EISREEIS (D B R A 7)), Dr. Lei was also an
executive director of Unionpay Merchant Services Co., Ltd. (iR
“rgTE AR /A F)), a director of China Unionpay Data Services
Co., Ltd. (SREEEIE AR A 7)), China Pay Co., Ltd. (H/GRIEE T
FAMRAE]), China Union Loyalty Co., Ltd. (/GRS &ENAE
[R /A &]), Guangzhou Unionpay Network Payment Co., Ltd. (&
P ERES 4848 S AHE R A F)) as well as a director and president of
Shanghai Kayou Information Services Co., Ltd. ( )& FA &R
BB A7), In March 2011, Dr. Lei is the chairman of Beijing
Gaohuitong Commercial Management Co. Ltd (bR & E B
H¥EBAMRAF]). He is also a committee member of Shanghai
Financial Arbitration Advising Committee (/8% gi{h# x4
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEB 2 BEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Mr. Cao Chunmeng, aged 43, joined the Company in March
2011 and acted as Vice President of the Company. Mr. Cao was
appointed as executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company on 11 July 2012. Mr. Cao held a bachelor’s
degree in Computer Science from Shandong University in 1994.
And he obtained a master’s degree in business administration
from Peking University in 2006. He worked at Shandong Branch
of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, acted
as General Manager in EEEGEHFRAR AR (Jinan Xiande
Technology Limited), Senior Deputy President in 25 (R E)
AIR/A7] (Fengyuanxin (China) Limited), General Manager in
ferER (b ) B BR AR (Zongheng Tiandi (Beijing)
Information Technology Limited) and as Vice President in Jbi%
5158 (dtR) EFmEAMR AR (Beikong Easycode (Beijing)
Electric Commerce Ltd). And from April of 2010, Mr. Cao acts
as Vice President of Beijing Shangyin Investment Consultancy
Co., Limited (B #R&EE (b R) REFE M AR 2 7). From October
2011, Mr. Cao acts as an executive director of Kanghui Financial
(Beijing) E-Commerce Co., Limited (FEEmEa (It R) BFE5
BREFAQT). He was appointed as the director of SR E S
BrEPRE A "], Mr. Cao has over 18 years of financial information
technology Internet industry management experience.

Mr. Yan Xiaotian, aged 55, joined the Company in April 2014
and acted as the chief strategy and investment officer of the
Company in April 2014; and acted as the chairman and legal
representative of Beijing ONECOMM Technology Company
Limited, an indirect subsidiary of the Company since December
2014. Mr. Yan has been appointed as an executive Director and
the chief investment officer of the Company with effect from
24 December 2014. Mr. Yan has obtained a master degree in
economics from Graduate School of the People’s Bank of China
(R B A RSRTTHFZS A EF) (which was then merged with Tsinghua
University and known as PBC School of Finance, Tsinghua
University since 2012) and is a senior economist. Mr. Yan had
worked consecutively as the president of the head office of
Bank of China Limited, vice president of Guangzhou Branch of
China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (formerly known as CITIC
Industrial Bank Limited), general manager of CITIC Securities
Co., Ltd. (Guangzhou) and director and executive president of
South China International Leasing Co., Ltd.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEBBEFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Fong Chi Wah, aged 52, joined the Group in December
19, 2003. Dr. Fong is a Chartered Financial Analyst, a member
of Hong Kong Institute of CPAs and the Institute of Certified
Management Accountants, Australia, and the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. Dr. Fong has over 24 years of experience
in various sectors of the financial industry, including direct
investment, project and structured finance and capital markets,
with a focus on the PRC and Hong Kong. Dr. Fong was a
director of Baring Capital (China) Management Limited and held
various management positions in ING Bank. He was appointed
as an executive director of National Investments Fund Limited
on November 1, 2005 and an independent non-executive
director of Real Nutriceutical Group Limited on March 28,
2008, and both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.
He is appointed as a court member of Lingnan University for
the period from January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2016. Dr
Fong obtained a bachelor’'s degree in management science
(economics) from Lancaster University, United Kingdom,
in 1984, a master’s degree in business administration from
Warwick University, United Kingdom, in 1986, a master's
degree in investment management from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in 1999, a master’s
degree in practising accounting from Monash University,
Australia, in 2001, a doctorate in business administration from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2007 and a juris
doctor’s degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in
2013.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEB 2 BEFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Cont’d)

Mr. Wang Zhongmin, aged 65, has a diploma in industrial
economic management from R ARKERIXER (The
Correspondence School of Renmin University of China*). Mr.
Wang has over 40 years of experience in the coal industry. Mr.
Wang worked as the deputy section head of fix T 2508175 A
(the Finance Department of the Ministry of Coal Industry*) from
1981 to 1988, the section head of FEZANEIELE N T FEED
(the Finance Department in China National Coal Corporation*)
from 1988 to 1993, the section head and the deputy head of
R T2 5B 7454 7] (the Finance and Labor Department of
Ministry of Coal Industry*) from 1993 to 1995, the chairman
and the general manager of FEEFEREBREEAR] (China
Coal Trust Co., Ltd.*) from 1995 to 2002,the chairman of /1
FIEEAMREE A E (China Credit Trust Co., Ltd.*) from 2002
to 2010 and the chairman of ZEE S EIE AR A F] (Harvest
Fund Management Co., Ltd.*) from 2003 to 2011. He was the
first chairman of FEI{S5EE & (China Trustee Association*).
He was also appointed as the independent director of )&
AN EE BRI AR A7) (Shanghai Datun Energy Resources
Co.,Limited*) (stock code: 600508) and deputy chairman of #
Bl ik T21%€ (China National Coal Association*). Mr. Wang
joined the Company in April 2011.

Mr. Gu Jiawang, aged 64, has accumulated profound
knowledge and valuable experience in the mass media industry.
Mr. Gu worked as a senior editor, commentator, person in
charge of the editing section and the head of the business
development department of AR H %k (People’s Daily*). He was
also appointed as the chief executive officer of HEZEREIKE
g EBR A F) (China Huawen Investment Holding Company
Limited*) which is held by AR B (People’s Daily*), the
chairman of AREFAKREBREE2AFA (Zhongtai Trust and
Investment Co., Ltd.*), the chairman of /%= (£E) &
fR & T2 7] (Shanghai New Huang Pu (Group) Co., Ltd.*) and
the chairman of FIJIFEFHERLFR A A (Shenzhen Stock
Times Newspaper Limited*). Mr. Gu graduated from the
Philosophy Department of Nanjing University. He also obtained
a postgraduate diploma after studying two years at the Party
School of the Central Committee of C.P.C. Mr. Gu joined the
Company in April 2011.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEBBEFE

HONORABLE CHAIRMAN

Mr. Liu Tinghuan, a famous banker, was appointed as
Honorable Chairman of the Company on 23 October 2011. Mr.
Liu was the former chairman of China Unionpay Co., Ltd. Mr.
Liu began his profession in the banking sector of China from
1960s. Since 1985, Mr. Liu had served as deputy president,
deputy Secretary of the Party, and then became the president
and the Party Secretary of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China. In 2000, Mr. Liu was appointed to the deputy president
and deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of The People's
Bank of China. Mr. Liu was a committee member of the
Standing Committee of the 10th National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in 2003.
He was deputy director of the Economic Commission, an
alternate committee member of the 15th Central Committee
of Communist Party of China and a representative of the 16th
National Congress of Communist Party of China. Mr. Liu served
as chairman of China Unionpay Co., Ltd from 2004 to 2010.
Mr. Liu served as an independent non-executive director of
Bank of Communications from August 2013 to June 2014. Mr.
Liu achieved extraordinary contribution to the development of
China Unionpay and China’s payment industry.

CHIEF ECONOMIC CONSULTANT

Mr. Xia Bin, a famous economist and financial expert in China,
was acted as the Chief Economic Consultant of the Company on
8 June 2011. Mr. Xia Bin serves as the Counselor of the State
Council, an honorable director of Research Institute of Finance
under Development Research Centre of the State Council and
Chief Consultant of China International Futures Co., Limited. He
also acts as the Chairman of China Chief Economist Forum and
the President of Nankai University National Economic Strategy
Research Institute. Mr. Xia was ever a director of Research
Institute of Finance under Development Research Centre of
the State Council, a number of the Monetary Policy Committee
of the People’s Bank of China, served as a vice director of the
Institute of Finance of the People’'s Bank of China, a manager
of trading department of the CSRC, a general manager of
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, a person-in-charge of Department
of Policy Research of the People’s Bank of China and a director
of Regulatory of Non-Banking Financial Organization of the
People’s Bank of China. Mr. Xia Bin’s research primarily covers
macro-economic condition; currency policy; financial regulatory
and the development of the capital market in China. Mr. Xia
wrote or edited a lot of books which are very influential to the
capital markets.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEB 2 BEFE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Xue Wei, aged 52, joined the Company on 2 May 2012
and acted as Vice President of the Company and President of
Kopu (Beijing) Technology Co. Ltd. (552 (b ) BRI A
[2/~7]). After graduated from the Foreign Language School
of the China International Politic Institute (FF BB FR BUOR Ep7)
with major in French in 1985, he was awarded master degree
in business administration by the China Economic Research
Centre of the Peking University and the FORHDAM University
in the United States. Mr. Xue had worked as manager of China
Air Service Ltd, standing vice general manager of Kingyou Air
Transportation Service Co. (&/RMZEH RIS A 7)), general
manager of 1t R BEER &%/ 7, general manager of Beijing
Bao Sheng Air Service Company, general manager of &/
BB IRTTEIE AR, general manager of air ticketing
department of Mangocity (www. mangocity.com) and vice
president of eLong (www.elong. com). He has 28 years of
extensive experience in the air freight and travel agency
industry in China, involving the research and management of
business travel and e-commerce. Mr. Xue had ever been a
standing member of the agency committee under the China
Air Transportation Association (FEfZB@HHERIEAZE
&), and Mr. Xue has been a senior member of the professional
team under the GLG Councils of the United States from the
year of 2010.

Mr. Fung Kwok Leung, aged 49, is the qualified accountant
and company secretary of the Company. Mr. Fung holds
an Honours Degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

The Directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements of China Innovationpay Group Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 17 August
1999 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). Its shares have
been listed on The Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM") since 14 April 2000.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in four segments. Namely
(i) General trading: trading of mobile phones, computers,
communication equipments, currency sorters and other goods;
(i) Prepaid card business: provision of third party payment
services and consultancy services; and marketing and sale of
consumer goods in form of prepaid gift cards in the People’s
Republic of China (“the PRC"); (iii) Travellers related services:
provision of air-ticketing services and related customers
services; and (iv) Onecomm — provision of third party payment
system solution and sales of integrated smart point of sales
("POS") devices.

An analysis of the Group's turnover, segment result and
segment assets for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set
out in Note 7 and 9 respectively to the accompanying financial
statements.

CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 43% (2013: 47 %) of
the Group's total turnover, while the five largest suppliers of
the Group accounted for approximately 77 % (2013: 41 %) of the
Group's total purchases. The largest customer accounted for
approximately 15% (2013: 20%) of the Group's total turnover
while the largest supplier accounted for approximately 23%
(2013: 20%) of the Group's total purchases.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their
associates, or any shareholders (which, to the knowledge of
the Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’'s share
capital) had a beneficial interest in the five largest customers
and suppliers of the Group.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group's results for the year ended 31 December
2014 are set out on pages 45 to 48 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend
(2013: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements share capital of the Company are set out
in Note 34 to the accompanying financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the directors, the directors confirm that the Company
maintained a sufficient of public float as required under the
GEM Listing rules.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

As at 31 December 2014, there is no outstanding convertible
bonds.

WARRANTS

On 16 July 2012 (after trading hours), the Company and
Senrigan Master Fund (the”Subscriber”) entered into the
Subscription Agreement, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to issue and the Subscriber agreed to subscribe for
the Warrants, at the Issue Price of HK$0.002 per Warrant. The
Warrants entitle the Subscriber to subscribe for 300,000,000
Warrant Shares with an aggregate face value of HK$120 million
at the initial Subscription Price of HK$0.40 per Warrant Share
for a period of five (5) years commencing from the date of issue
of the Warrants.

On 27 July 2012, all conditions set out in the Subscription
Agreement had been fulfilled and completed. No listing of
the Warrants will be sought on the GEM or any other stock
exchanges.

As at this report date, there were still outstanding 80,000,000

Warrant Shares with an aggregate face value of HK$32 million
to be subscribed.
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RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFITS

Movements in reserves of the Company during the year are set
out in Note 35 to the accompanying financial statements.

Movements in retained profits and other reserves of the Group
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 50 of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2014 the Company had no reserves
available for distribution to its shareholders. However,
the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
approximately HK$991,322,000, may be distributed in the form
of fully paid bonus shares.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during
the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Byelaws and the laws in Bermuda in relation to the
issue of new shares by the Company.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates are
set out in Notes 18 and 21 respectively to the accompanying
financial statements.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Details of the Group's share option schemes are set out in Note
36 to the accompanying financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions are set out in Note 42 to
the accompanying financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Guan Guisen (Chairman)

Dr. Lei Chunxiong

Mr. Cao Chunmeng (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Yan Xiaotian (Appointed on 24 December 2014)

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Fong Chi Wah

Mr. Wang Zhongmin

Mr. Gu Jiawang

In accordance with items 99 and 102A of the Bye-Laws of the
Company, Mr. Yan Xiaotian, Mr. Wang Zhongming and Mr. Gu
Jiawang will retire from office by rotation and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Guan Guisen, the executive director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 28 February 2014.

Dr. Lei Chunxiong, the executive director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 28 February 2014.

Mr. Cao Chunmeng, the executive director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 11 July 2012.

Mr. Yan Xiaotian, the executive director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 24 December 2014.

Dr. Fong Chi Wah, the independent non-executive directors,

has entered the service agreement with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from 19 December 2012.
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Dr. Fong Chi Wah has served on the Board for more than 9
years but he has never held any executive or management
position in the Group nor has he throughout such period been
under the employment of any member of the Group. Dr. Fong
has demonstrated his ability to provide an independent view
to the Company’s matters. The Directors noted the positive
contributions Dr. Fong made to the development of the
Company. Dr. Fong Chi Wah has given the confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of GEM Listing Rules to
the Company. The nomination committee of the Company has
assessed and is satisfied of the independence of Dr. Fong. The
Board considers that the long services of Dr. Fong would not
affect his exercises of independent judgments, notwithstanding
his years of service as an independent Non-executive Director
of the Company, the Board is of the view that Dr. Fong is able
to continue to fulfill his roles as required.

Mr. Wang Zhongmin, the independent non-executive director,
has entered into a service agreement with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from 28 April 2014.

Mr. Gu Jiawang, the independent non-executive director,has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 28 April 2014.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being proposed
for reelection at the forthcoming AGM has an unexpired service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Company to which the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES

As at the date of this report, the interests or short positions of
the Directors in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (i) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (iii) were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions
by Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

EERRONVER
RASHEBE - EERAR A HHEE(A 8
FE(EERABHFRABKRMEXVER) 2
3~ MR REEEF - A *E?Jff %)
RHAE 1'm1§U%XV*E%7&8“* ARMEARR
REE T 2 #Em sk B ( a?éﬁﬁfxm%&ﬁﬂ
B R AE MX%&EIJ ESR BRI A 2R
i”é) DB (INIRIERE H K B E (5 55 3521645
2 TR AZIEFTI B R 2 S EORE ¢ sk
R IEBIFER ETHEAI555.46£5. 67{I7€ﬁ Fﬁ
%%Lﬁ %} %Z%ﬁ;ﬁﬁ%ﬂ PIN/N

Long position in Shares RRGBZHE
Interest in
Interest in underlying Total interest %
Name of Directors shares shares in shares Shareholding
RAERER 5 RERG
EExE8 RIR G 2 2 2B REBDL
Mr. Guan Guisen (Note 1) 1,300,200,000 - 1,300,200,000 23.20%
BEREE (M)
Dr. Lei Chunxiong 159,290,000 - 159,290,000 2.84%
BALEE L
Mr. Cao Chunmeng 47,620,000 19,800,000 67,420,000 1.20%
BEHBEE (Note 2)
(Hfit2)
Mr. Yan Xiaotian 21,640,000 - 21,640,000 0.39%
S[=3pe
Dr. Fong Chi Wah - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.02%
FEEEL (Note 2)
(Hiat2)
Mr. Wang Zhongmin 600,000 400,000 1,000,000 0.02%
THRRLE (Note 2)
(#fit2)
Mr. Gu Jiawang 600,000 400,000 1,000,000 0.02%
BERALAE (Note 2)
(Hfit2)
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Note 1: The shares are held by Mighty Advantage Enterprises Limited
("Mighty Advantage”). Mighty Advantage is incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands and is beneficially owned by Mr.
Guan Guisen.

Note 2: The Company granted the share options under New Share
Option Scheme on 6 July 2012.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none
of the Directors of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any Shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which (i) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (i) were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register referred
to therein; or (iii) were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions
by Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed below, as at the date of this report, there
was no other person (other than a director or chief executive
officer of the Company) who had any interests and short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO.
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Long position in Shares RBRBzHR

Interest in

Interest in underlying Total interest %

Name of Directors shares shares in shares Shareholding

REBER®S RERG
EEE8 R0z 2R 2B REBDL
Mr. Guan Guisen (Note) 1,300,200,000 - 1,300,200,000 23.20%
HEREE(ME)
Note: The shares are held by Mighty Advantage Enterprises Limited — A7i7 - %7 EMighty Advantage Enterprises

("Mighty Advantage”). Mighty Advantage is incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands and is beneficially owned by Mr.
Guan Guisen.
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EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTIONS

New Share Option Scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted at the annual general meeting held 3 May 2012 and is
valid for 5 years. After which period no further options will be
granted but the provisions of this scheme shall remain in full
force and effect in all other respects.

Share Option Scheme is set out below:

The purpose of Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives
or rewards to participants hereunder for their contribution to
the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain
high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group and any entity in which the Group holds
any equity interest.

Pursuant to Share Option Scheme, the Company may grant
options to the participants of Share Option Scheme to
subscribe for ordinary shares of $0.01 each, subject to, when
aggregated under this scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time. The subscription
price will be determined by the Company's Board of Directors,
and will not be less than the higher of (i) the nominal value of
the ordinary shares, (ii) the average of the closing price of the
ordinary shares quoted on the GEM on the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant, and (iii) the closing
price of ordinary shares quoted on the GEM on the date of
grant, which must be a business day. An offer of an option
shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted when
a duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the option duly
signed by the participant, together with a remittance of HK$1
by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is received by the
Company within a period of 28 days from the date of offer.

The Directors may, at their absolute discretion, invite any
person who has contributed to, or can contribute to the Group's
business value and/or technology from product development,
sales and marketing, manufacturing to enhancing efficiency of
operation to take up options to subscribe for ordinary shares of
the Company.
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No participant shall be granted an option which would result
in the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all the options granted and to be granted to such
person (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of such
grant representing in aggregate over 1 per cent. of the total
number of shares in issue.

Details of the options under New Share Option Scheme during
the year ended 31 December 2014 were as follows:

M2 EERETEEESER G TERD
FIERBRE(BREITE  SEHEREARTT
0 R B AR ) T 2 377 MA] T EITHIRM D 2R
B BROZEREEZA(BERLZA)
FEEHER1218 A B E KBR D #TRNAE
81% - BITERZE AR BRE -

RBE_Z-—NF+_A=+T—HILFER
BRI IR AR AT B4 Y BB AR SR 1B H 1A
T

At Granted Cancelled/ Exercised At
Exercise 1 January during  lapsed during during 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period price 2014 the year the year the year 2014
N-2-mF Enie/ H-2-mF
BB 8 g -A-8 ERfH RN nfiE tZA=t-8
New Share Option Scheme
FHRE Y
Directors and Chief Executives
EZRRAMHAR
6 July 2012 6 Ju\y 2013t 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,840,000 - - (600,000] 6,240,000
ZB-ZELAAR It 3 _Etﬂ/\ai 02557
T+t AR
6. July 2014 t0 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,840,000 - - (600,000] 6,240,000
’ﬁ—ﬂitﬂwﬁi 0.55T
T+t AR
6. July 2015 t0 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 9,120,000 - - - 9,120,000
*ﬁ—ﬂﬁtﬂwﬁi 0.25%T
T+t AR
Other employees
HitfEg
6July 2012 6. July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 52,224,000 - (482,000 (51,506,000 236,000
“EF-—F+A5A :__EJE)E]/\HI 0.255T
T—+F+ARA
6. July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 51,441,000 - (482,000 (50,661,000) 293,000
ZE-MELARRE 0257
“E-tECARA
6 July 2015 t0 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 68,586,000 - (1,032,000 - 67,556,000
ZE-NELRARE 02587
“E-tELARA
Total share options
BiRESH 195,063,000 = (1,996,000)  (103,367,000) 89,690,000
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Details of the options under New Share Option Scheme as at  RZARIRE B EAE EF BT 2142 B AR
the report date were as follows: HEFFBENT
At Granted Cancelled/ Exercised At
Exercise 1 January during  lapsed during during report
Date of grant Exercise period price 2014 the year the period the period date
RZ%-WE B/
RitiAH iid] fiid| -f-H EREH XN Bk NARERE
New Share Option Scheme
TRRETE
Directors and Chief Executives
ESRRATHAR
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,840,000 - - (600,000) 6,240,000
“E-ZELARA ZE-CELARRE 0.25%T
“E-t5tALA
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,840,000 - - (600,000) 6,240,000
ZE-MELARRE 0.255T
“T-tELARA
6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 9,120,000 - - - 9,120,000
ZE-nEtARAE 0.25%T
“T-tELARA
Other employees
HtifEg
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 52,224,000 - (482,000 (51,506,000] 236,000
“E-CECARA “E-TELARRE 0.25%7
“T-tELARA
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 51,441,000 - (498,000 (50,661,000] 282,000
“E-MELARAE 0.25%T
“E-t5tALA
6 July 2015 t0 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 68,588,000 - (1,032,000) - 67,556,000
“E-R5tANRE 0.255T
“T-tELARA
Total share options
ERELY 195,063,000 - (2,012,000 (103,367,000 89,674,000
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with the standards of good practice concerning the general
management responsibilities of the Board of Directors as set
out in Chapter 5 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout year
ended 31 December 2014.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of financial position of the
Group is set out on pages 155 and 156 of this annual report.

AUDITORS

On 30 December 2010, RSM Nelson Wheeler (“RSM") was
appointed.

RSM will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming
annual general meeting to re-appoint RSM as the auditor of the
Company.

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014 have been audited by RSM.

By Order of the Board

Mr. Guan Guisen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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&) RSM

Audit - Tax - Advisory

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA INNOVATIONPAY GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Innovationpay Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 45 to 154, which comprise the consolidated
and Company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRHMBRES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90
of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRHBMRES

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s results and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note
4(e) and note 20 to the consolidated financial statements
relating to the key assumptions that management made when
determining the amount of impairment of goodwill at end of
reporting period.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

= A 43 3L
,%/TI:EI:E.@

For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE

2014 2013
—E-lmEF —E—=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
FI3E FET FAT
Turnover =2 7 81,222 142,896
Cost of sales FHE AN (46,173) (93,173)
Gross profit EF 35,049 49,723
Other income HEHUA 8 4,461 3,943
Selling expenses HEMS (31,181) (19,911)
Administrative expenses ITHAX (60,675) (52,025)
Equity-settled share-based payments R RE A E S SRR IR (4,463) (9,173)
Loss from operations REEE (56,809) (27,443)
Finance costs Bh & AN 10 (9,714) (13,187)
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE 19 - (933)
Impairment of goodwvill BHERE 20 (53,323) (228,787)
Impairment of amount due from an JEW — Rl &8 A RIIE
associate JE - (4,733)
Gain on fair value change of investment R—REBE AT ZIEE
in an associate N EZS S 37(b) - 1,273
Loss before tax BRI AIEE (119,846) (273,810)
Income tax expense FriBiFsZ M (3,740) (4,927)
Loss for the year KEEEE 12 (123,586) (278,737)
Attributable to: BT AR :
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ N 15 (122,724) (279,352)
Non-controlling interests FEE R RS (862) 615
(123,586) (278,737)
HK cents HK cents
AL AL
Loss per share BRERE 16
Basic HAR (2.37) (5.93)
Diluted B3 N/A N/A
FEH T EA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GeBRRNkEMEEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE_T—NFE+_A=1+—HBLFE

2014 2013
—F-mE —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Loss for the year REEEE (123,586) (278,737)
Other comprehensive income: Ha2mWA :
Items that may be reclassified to AJREEF 72 B 2 THE -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating MEGINER 2 [E R Z5E
foreign operations (20,387) 31,795
Other comprehensive income for the FREM2EWA @ HIKRBIE
year, net of tax (20,387) 31,795
Total comprehensive income for the SFREHEWALZTE
year (143,973) (246,942)
Attributable to: BUR A FEfh -
Owners of the Company EiN/NETEZ =N (143,111) (247,557)
Non-controlling interests IR (862) 615
(143,973) (246,942)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR AR

At 31 December 2014

RZZE—NF+=—A=+—H

2014 2013
—E—MEF —ET—=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 FET FHEIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - B R 17 8,122 6,546
Intangible assets EREE 19 16,450 10,210
Long term deposits REES 25 28,281 28,216
Goodwill e 20 686,451 743,092
Investment in an associate R—EBE R R 2% E 21 - -
Available-for-sale financial assets A HEEEE 22 62,525 -
Deferred tax assets RETIEE E 33 1,876 1,918
803,705 789,982
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 23 6,770 1,921
Trade receivables e BR FX 24 59,593 48,570
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFIE - ke REME
receivables & O] 25 72,873 37,170
Bank and cash balances RITRI SR 26 162,595 109,639
Tax recoverable A Y @l A 18 - 296
301,831 197,596
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables JERHBRRR 27 11,956 4,961
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A R H A R IR 28 49,870 60,555
Borrowings B 29 625 -
Amount due to a non-controlling FET— P B A R IEIER%
shareholder of a subsidiary REE0E 30 666 -
Amounts due to directors ENESHIE 30 5 9,253
Current tax liabilities BIEATIE B (& 2,904 2,228
Contingent consideration payable JERT S ARE 31 10,110 -
76,136 76,997
Net current assets REBEEFE 225,695 120,599
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBAERE 1,029,400 910,581
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible bonds Al AR E A 32 - 86,596
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIAEE 33 1,076 =
1,076 86,596
NET ASSETS EEFRE 1,028,324 823,985
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR ER

At 31 December 2014

RZZE—NF+=—A=+—H

2014 2013
—F-mFE T =F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
gz FHET FAET
Capital and reserves EXR#E

Share capital A% 7K 34 56,055 47,071
Reserves 1 35 965,767 776,207

Equity attributable to owners of RAFHE ANEERER
the Company 1,021,822 823,278
Non-controlling interests FEPE R R o 6,502 707
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,028,324 823,985

Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2015

Director
EF
MR. GUAN GUISEN
BEAREE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B FEAR AR

At 31 December 2014

RZZE—NF+=—A=+—H

2014 2013
—E—-F —E—=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
e FHET FHETT
Non-current assets IREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NRE 107 172
Investments in subsidiaries RB AT ZIRE 18 677,088 787,088
Amounts due from subsidiaries A =G 18 152,400 _
829,595 787,260
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TENFIE - me &k
receivables =l A E e 794 786
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG E O] 18 146,068 130,267
Bank and cash balances RITRIR 45 48,263 1,616
195,125 132,669
Current liabilities REAE
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A R H AL FIE 1,906 1,616
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERB B A T RIA 18 1,058 8256
Amounts due to directors FENESZIA 30 1 9,250
2,965 11,691
Net current assets REBEEFEE 192,160 120,978
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAERS 1,021,755 908,238
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible bonds AR &5 32 - 86,596
- 86,596
NET ASSETS EEZE 1,021,755 821,642
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital A& AN 34 56,055 47,071
Reserves B 35 965,700 774,571
TOTAL EQUITY AL 1,021,755 821,642

Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2015

Director
EZE

MR. GUAN GUISEN

BERLE

Director
BF
DR. LEI CHUNXIONG
BAEE L

R-E-—RF=A=+TBERKEFSIE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SREX S TR

an

For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE—

Attributable to owners of the Company

—OF+ZA=+—RHIFE

AR
Share Share  Convertible Retained Non-
Share  premium Capital ~ Statutory  Exchange option bondsequity ~ Warrant  profits/ controlling Total
capital  account  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve (loss) Total interests equity
TARES  ARER REEN/
BE ROEEE EAEE  iERE EXRE BRERE EEHE Bk (B8 gt FERER EREE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 - HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén TEr  TEr TR TEr TR T TEr TEr TR TEr  TEn
At1 January 2013 R-E-=%-f-H 47,07 640,060 2,850) 8122 58,367 6,022 nm 523 292636 1,061,662 88 1,061,750
Total comprehensive EREENALE
income for the year - - - - 31,7% - - - (2719352)  (247587) 615 (246,942)
Transfer to statutory BETITRE
reserve - - - ) - - - - (555) - - -
Arising from acquisition of Yt —FRIHBAA
asubsidiary (Note 37(0))  FREE (Ff3£37(0)) - - - - - - - - - - 4 4
Share-based payments 43R = - - - - 9173 - - - 9173 - 9173
Release upon lapse of  REREXTERR
share options - - - - - (100) - - 100 - - -
Changes in equity for FRERED
the year - - - 555 31,7% 9,073 - - (279807)  (238,384) 619 (237,765
At31December2013  R-F-=#
TZA=1-H 47,07 640,060 2,850) 8,677 90,162 15,0% nm 523 12,829 8232718 707 823,985
At 1 January 2014 RZE-ME-A-H 47011 640,060 (2,850) 8,677 90,162 15,09 171 523 1289 823278 07 823985
Total comprehensive EMEERALE
income for the year - - - - (20,387) - - - (122728 (143111) (862)  (143973)
Transfer to statutory BETITRE
reserve - - - 1,200 - - - - (1,200) - - -
Arising from acquisition of a JiE& —FEMBAT
subsidiary (Note 37(al) ~ FREE (HF3E37(a)) - - - - - - - - - - 6,657 6,657
Issued from placing REYT 2000 125,040 - - - - - - - 127040 - 127040
Conversion of convertible ¥ AT AR ER
bonds 3750 104,271 - - - - - - 96,310 - 96,310
Exercise of warrants Tl mEE 2,200 86,184 - - - - - (384) - 88,000 - 88,000
Exercise of share options 7R IE 1034 35767 - - - (10,959) - - - B8R - B8R
Share-based payments  RIAZFEE - - - - - 4463 - - - 4463 - 4,463
Release uponlapse of  REREXNEER
share options - - - - - (197) - - 197 - - -
Changes in equity for EpgRE
the year 8980 35162 - 100 3 668 (11711 BB (12372 19854 57% 204339
At31December 2014 RZE-IE
TZAZ+-A 56,055 991,322 2,850} 9871 69,775 8402 - 139 (110898 1,021,822 6,502 1,028,324
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEREMEBMRK

For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE

2014 2013
—E—MEF —E—=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BI5E FET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KRETHHESRE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BRA% A& 1R (119,846) (273,810)
Adjustments for: AT BIEFAE -
Interest income FEMA 8 (3,423) (3,213)
Finance costs BLE R A 10 9,714 13,187
Depreciation e 17 2,359 2,656
(Gain)/loss on disposals of property, HEWE - BENERE
plant and equipment (Wz=) B8 (201) 5
Property, plant and equipment MEE = - WE &R
written off 17 - 82
Amortisation of intangible assets BiNmpEE 19 2,464 1,460
Other receivables written off Hif 5 EL A PR U k0B - 659
Gain on deregistration of a branch BUEEM—REa ARz
Wz (812) -
Impairment of prepayment TE IR A 75 -
Gain on fair value change of R—REE AR ZIZE
investment in an associate NEEZEH RS - (1,273)
Equity-settled share-based payments B E IR X 5RIA 4,463 9.173
Intangible assets written off MEsER A E 19 1,095 933
Impairment of goodwill ERE 20 53,323 228,787
Impairment of amount due from JEW — RIS & A RIRIB
an associate BB - 4,733
Impairment of trade receivables JE WS BR OB (B 24 - 1,080
Operating loss before working EEBREHAI R EE
capital changes B (50,789) (15,541)
Decrease in inventories FEerd 682 188
(Increase)/decrease in trade FEUR AR R (3800) R >
receivables (11,015) 11,235
Decrease in prepayments, deposits TERFIA -~ Re RHEAMm
and other receivables JE W SR IR R, 10,120 26,864
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FERBEFIE 10 CRid) 860 (5,808)
Increase in accruals and TEIRE A R HALER K
other payables TE 8 A0 (16,237) (38,632)
Cash used in operations KEFTAERS (66,379) (21,594)
Interest received BT B 2,673 2,963
Income tax paid BEfHE (2,663) (6,903)
Net cash used in operating activities KEEENFTIR & F 5 (66,369) (25,534)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AEREMEBRRK

For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE_T—NFE+_A=1+—HBLFE

2014 2013
—E-NmEF —E—=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BEE FERT FA&T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHESRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and BAYE - BEMEE
equipment 17 (4,322) (3,171)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME « E XRERT
plant and equipment 1S5KI8 1,095 1
Additions to intangible assets NEBELEE 19 (2,261) (3,446)
Addition of available-for-sale RNEAHEENBKEE
financial assets 22 (62,525) -
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE— B AR 37 1,700 (2,267)
Increase in long-term deposits RHREIE M (65) (795)
Loans to third-parties BTYE=ZFEXR (106,224) (7,674)
Received from loans to third parties WES TE=HER 63,483 -
Net cash used in investing activities WEEETRIR S 5 (109,119) (17,352)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHESRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from unlisted warrant I T RIRAERE P15 38 88,000 -
Proceeds from placing B FT1S0IA 127,040 -
Proceeds from exercise of share options 1T{#EIIETEZIE 25,842 -
(Payment)/advance (to)/from directors (Bg) EE5a3x% (9,248) 4,212
Net cash generated from financing BB EE TSI & F R
activities 231,634 4,212
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH B&RRSZEWE M~
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R2) 5 56,146 (38,674)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [E&RE#) & (3,190) 4,888
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT WH—HA—HZEE&R
1 JANUARY ReEEY 109,639 143,425
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ®R+=-—B=+—H8%x2
31 DECEMBER HeERREEEY 162,595 109,639
ANALYSIS OF THE CASH AND CASH B4 RBEZENSH
EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RIT MRS MR 162,595 109,639
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability. The address of its registered office is Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda.
The address of its principal place of business is Unit
2708, 27/F, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong
Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "“Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") that are
relevant to its operations and effective for its accounting
year beginning on 1 January 2014. HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS");
Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKAS"”); and
Interpretations.

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
The following standards have been adopted by

the Group for the first time for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2014

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

2.

54

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS
(Cont’d)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Cont’d)

Amendment to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities

This amendment clarifies that the right of set-
off must not be contingent on a future event.
It must also be legally enforceable for all
counterparties in the normal course of business,
as well as in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy. The amendment also considers
settlement mechanisms. The amendment did not
have a significant effect on the Group financial
statements.

Amendment to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount
disclosures for non-financial assets

The amendments reduce the circumstances in
which the recoverable amount of assets or cash-
generating units is required to be disclosed, clarify
the disclosures required, and introduce an explicit
requirement to disclose the discount rate used
in determining impairment (or reversals) where
recoverable amount based on fair value less costs
of disposal is determined using a present value
technigue. The amendments do not have an
impact on these consolidated financial statements
as the recoverable amounts of assets or cash-
generating units have been determined on the
basis of their value in use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS
(Cont’d)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Cont’d)

HK(IFRIC) 21, Levies

The Interpretation provides guidance on when a
liability to pay a levy imposed by a government
should be recognised. The amendments do not
have an impact on these consolidated financial
statements as the Group is not currently subjected
to significant levies.

Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of derivatives
and continuation of hedge accounting

The amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from
discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of
a derivative designated as a hedging instrument
meets certain criteria. The amendments do not
have an impact on these financial statements as
the Group has not novated any of its derivatives.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 (Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

This amendment clarifies the definitions of
“vesting condition” and “market condition” and
adds definitions for “performance condition” and
“service condition”. The amendment is applicable
prospectively to share-based payment transactions
for which the grant date is on or after 1 July 2014
and had no effect on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

2.

56

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS
(Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Cont’d)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 (Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

This amendment, applicable prospectively to
business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after 1 July 2014, requires any
contingent consideration that is classified as an
asset or a liability (i.e. non-equity) to be measured
at fair value at each reporting date with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Amendments to HKFRS 13 (Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

This amendment to the standard’s basis for
conclusions only clarifies that the ability to measure
certain short-term receivables and payables on an
undiscounted basis is retained.

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2014. The directors anticipate that the
new and revised HKFRSs will be adopted in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements when
they become effective. The Group has assessed,
where applicable, the potential effect of all new
and revised HKFRSs that will be effective in future
periods but is not yet in a position to state whether
these new and revised HKFRSs would have a
material impact on its results of operations and
financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS
(Cont’d)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Cont’d)

List of new and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective that are relevant to the Group's

operation
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?
Amendments to  Disclosure Initiative4
HKAS 1

Amendments to  Clarification of Acceptable
HKAS 16 and Methods of Depreciation
HKAS 38 and Amortisation4

Amendments to  Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycles

Amendments to  Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle?

Amendments to  Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle*

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017, with earlier application permitted.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2014, with earlier application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2014, with limited exceptions. Earlier
application is permitted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014

3.

58

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
which for this financial year and the comparative period
continue to be those of the predecessor Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with
transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
“Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to
87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market (the
“"GEM") of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 4.

The significant accounting policies applied in the

preparation of these financial statements are set out
below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(a)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. The Group has
power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly
affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting right
is considered only if the holder has the practical
ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary
that results in a loss of control represents the
difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of
any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii)
the Company’s share of the net assets of that
subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and any
related accumulated exchange reserve relating to
that subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_T—NFE+_A=1+—HBLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXREFBE#E
(Cont'd)

(a) Consolidation (Contd) (a) #ZERE(#E)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or
indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated
statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
shareholders even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company's ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions
(i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to the owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Cont'd)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment losses. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for
the acquisition of a subsidiary in a business
combination. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and
any contingent consideration. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in
which the costs are incurred and the services are
received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred over the Company’s share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’'s identifiable assets
and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess
of the Company’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the sum
of the consideration transferred is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase which is attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary
is remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value
and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added
to the sum of the consideration transferred in a
business combination to calculate the goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill
(Cont’d)

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary
are initially measured at the non-controlling
shareholders’ proportionate share of the net fair
value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in
a business combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUs") or groups of CGUs
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represents the
lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of the CGU containing the
goodwill is compared to its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of value in use and the fair
value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is
recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EBEXSTHR#®

(Cont’d)

(c) Associates (c) HFEATE
Associates are entities over which the Group has BEQRIRAREHEFEX
significant influence. Significant influence is the FENERE BERFENE
power to participate in the financial and operating ER2HEERVGEREEBUER
policy decisions of an entity but is not control or ZIRE 1 N2 ) o R 22
joint control over those policies. The existence and FZERER c R EAEERST
effect of potential voting rights that are currently BREEAFENE  €EER
exercisable or convertible, including potential RS FHEAITES A EHR

voting rights held by other entities, are considered
when assessing whether the Group has significant
influence. In assessing whether a potential voting
right contributes to significant influence, the
holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise or
convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements by the
equity method and is initially recognised at cost.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate
in an acquisition are measured at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group's share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the
investment and is tested for impairment together
with the investment at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_T—NFE+_A=1+—HBLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXREFBE#E
(Cont'd)

(c) Associates (Cont'd) (c) EEEAQT(E)

The Group's share of an associate’'s post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss, and its share of
the post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in the consolidated reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate. If the
associate subsequently reports profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits only
after its share of the profits equals the share of
losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate
that results in a loss of significant influence
represents the difference between (i) the fair value
of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that associate and (ii)
the Group's entire carrying amount of that associate
(including goodwill) and any related accumulated
exchange reserve. If an investment in an associate
becomes an investment in a joint venture, the
Group continues to apply the equity method and
does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)
(d)
(i)
(if)

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’'s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on
initial recognition using the exchange rates
prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end
of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair values in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rates at the
dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a gain or
loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in profit or loss, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE

3. EXREFHEE®E)

(d) SNEBRE

() DEEREIIEH
AEBEER MR
RFFIEE - AUZE
BREMETIBEBR
B2 E%([Thee g% )
ATE - BRAMEHRRIA
RRBZMER2IE
BEBTZS

(i) EERBUBHLFZIX
5 R bk
INERZIERHABZ
BRITER - RYITHER
RIE RINEEER © A
SINE2IN 2 EREER
BERERENELEE
BzBERME -
TR P A o as M B 8
RIBERTER °

BASME A FERHE 2 3
MR RETATE
A2 R -

HIFEREIRR 2 W=k
B 1R A H 2 T R B
R IE A ey p s o
EAELSMONEME
EATER - WIEEHE
THE Z Wk EENE
SAER - AR
1B AR 50 IR

TE\ = ﬁ& %/lu °

HEEF X NEEERAR ¢ —T—FFR 65



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_T—NFE+_A=1+—HBLFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEHHBE®E)
(Cont’d)
(d) Foreign currency translation (Cont'd) (d) 4P &)
(i) Translation on consolidation (i) AEKA#E

66

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company's
presentation currency are translated into
the Company's presentation currency as
follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated
at average exchange rates for the
period (unless this average is not
areasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the
exchange reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of monetary
items that form part of the net investment
in foreign entities and of borrowings are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain
or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (Cont'a)

(i)  Translation on consolidation (Cont’d)
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during
the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
less their residual values over the estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

Over the shorter of
unexpired term of lease
and estimated useful
lives, being no more
than 20 years after the
date of completion

Leasehold
improvements

Furniture and office 10% — 33%

equipment

Motor vehicles 20% — 25%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

3.

68

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Conta)
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
methods are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
Group all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets are accounted for as operating leases.
Lease payments (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Customer relationship

Customer relationship is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of 5 years.

Research and development expenditure
of computer software

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred. An
internally generated intangible asset arising from
the Group's e-business development is recognised
only if all of the following conditions are met:

- An asset is created that can be identified
(such as software and new processes);

- It is probable that the asset created will
generate future economic benefits; and

- The development cost of the asset can be
measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(h)

(i)

(i)

(k)

Research and development expenditure

of computer software (Cont'a)

Internally generated intangible assets are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
of 3 to 10 years. Where no internally generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Technology know-how

Technology know-how is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of 5 years.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
first-in, first-out basis. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where
appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the statement of financial position
when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014

3.

70

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(k)

)

Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments (Cont'a)

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire; the Group transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assets; or the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis where the purchase or sale of
an investment is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the investment within the
timeframe established by the market concerned,
and are initially measured at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the case of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

)

Investments (Cont'd)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are not classified as loans and
other receivables, held-to-maturity investments or
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value of these investments
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve, until the investments are disposed of or
there is objective evidence that the investments
are impaired, at which time the cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. Interest calculated using
the effective interest method and dividends
on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss.

Investments in equity instruments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments,
are measured at cost less impairment losses.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
for equity investments classified as available-
for-sale financial assets are not subsequently
reversed through profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in profit or loss for debt instruments
classified as available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently reversed and recognised in
profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
instruments can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014

3.

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(m) Trade and other receivables

(n)

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market
and are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment. An allowance for impairment of trade
and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of receivables. The amount of the allowance
is the difference between the receivables’ carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition. The amount of
the allowance is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods and recognised in profit or loss when an
increase in the receivables’ recoverable amount
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, subject
to the restriction that the carrying amount of
the receivables at the date the impairment is
reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(o)

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments
are set out below.

(i)

(ii)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated
initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014

3.

74

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(o)

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments (Cont’d)

(iii)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds which entitle the holder
to convert the loans into a fixed number of
equity instruments at a fixed conversion
price are regarded as compound instruments
that consist of a liability and an equity
component. At the date of issue, the fair
value of the liability component is estimated
using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible debt. The difference
between the proceeds of issue of the
convertible bonds and the fair value assigned
to the liability component, representing
the embedded option for the holder to
convert the loans into equity of the Group,
is included in equity as convertible bonds
reserve. The liability component is carried
as a liability at amortised cost using the
effective interest method until extinguished
on conversion or redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned between
the liability and equity components of the
convertible bonds based on their relative
carrying amounts at the date of issue. The
portion relating to the equity component is
charged directly to equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(o)

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments (Cont’d)

(iv)

(v)

Contingent consideration payable
Contingent consideration payable is
classified as a financial liability as it is
resulted from a contract under contingent
consideration arrangement. The amount
is initially measured at fair value. The
subsequent fair value change will then be
measured at fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014

3.

76

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(p)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is
recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably.

(i)

(1)

(iii)

Sales of goods

Revenues from the sales of finished goods
are recognised on the transfer of significant
risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when the
goods are delivered and the title has passed
to the customers.

Card transaction levies represent service
fee charged by the Group to contracted
merchants at specific rates on the monetary
value of consumptions made by cardholder
settled using the stored value cards in the
merchants’ stores. Card transaction levies
are recognised as these transactions occur.

Card handling and service charges consist
of monthly maintenance fees on expired
unused balances, new card handling
charges, net of discount or waivers, and
other customer services charges. The
monthly maintenance fees are recognised
when the fees are deducted from the
unused balances at each month end. The
new card handling charges are recognised
when a card buyer purchases a new card.
Other customer services are recognised
when the services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(p)

(q)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Consultancy income is recognised when the
service is rendered and on the basis of stage
of completion of each individual project,
provided that the costs involved can be
measured reliably. The stage of completion
of a transaction is established by reference
to the costs incurred to date as compared
to the estimated total costs under the
transaction.

Commission income is recognised when the
service is rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined
contribution retirement schemes which are
available to all employees. Contributions
to the schemes by the Group and
employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement
benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014

3.

/8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)
(q) Employee benefits (Cont'd)

(iif)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at
the earlier of the dates when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment

of termination benefits.

(r) Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain directors and employees.
Equity-settled share-based payments are measured
at fair value (excluding the effect of non-market
based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments
at the date of grant. The fair value determined at
the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate
of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for
the effect of non-market based vesting conditions.

(s) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from

the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Borrowing costs (Cont’d)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally
and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of
the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings
of the Group that are outstanding during the
period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to it and that the
grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
to match them with the costs they are intended to
compensate.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in profit or loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014

3.

80

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(u)

Taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(u)

(v)

Taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related
to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the

Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company.

BE_T—

3.

ME+—A=t—RIFE

BEREBEK &)

(u)

(v)

HEEFXNEEERAR ¢ —F—

BIE %)
B IEIRBHRaEEE
&é% ''''''' AT BARE A 2 B ET
E o MA BB EARE HEA
HEHEEMERBM 2B E
%%i o RIEFHIA N B 1
CMERER TR RN A 2
WA#ﬁutﬁﬁﬁA%*z
Iﬁaﬁ%%@%Wh‘Em\
EL&ETEEMEEM
A¢ﬁuiﬁ§ﬁkﬁ £ o

EERAEERABEIER
R HmE SR HIRAEE
AT EIE B ES &R RER
EEZTAZHBER -

EXRBEEERBREREMRX
56 Il # 1) LA B HA B TR 7 £ )
HRAAEEER - MNZF
EERREERABER K
BB Z RS HiERE - B
AREE A FREELFERA
IR B E K B AR o

BEAL
FEALTREASERBEZ
EAKERE -

A FEALTHEHAEBRERR
EAREEBREE

()  EALREEEHIK
HREES KA E

EE

(i) ZATH éﬁz}xi
B 5 i =
2 ;5

(i) Z A i7%$
Z*x ‘“@A
/E\ o

POEF R 81



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014

3.

82

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(v) Related parties (Cont'd)

(B)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(V)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Company are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (A).

A person identified in (A)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(w) Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its intangible
assets and investments — except goodwill,
deferred tax assets, inventories and receivables,
of which impairment policies are set of in notes
3(b), 3(u), 3(j) and 3(m) respectively—, to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or CGU is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of amortisation
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset or CGU in prior year.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE

3.

BEREBEK &)

(w)

EERE

RERETHEEER - ~&E
VeEMNHEANEENENE
E(EHE BEEMEEE 77
B RSN - B RIRER
B B E Y FE3() ~ 3(u) »
3(j) 3(m)) 2 BREME - AEETE
EREEATRBETZEEE
EHBRBERERE - WiFEE[
BEDR - Mgt EEZA
WEEHE  NEERERBEZ
RE o TR BEfhEHERI B E
ZAREEER - RIAREES G
AAEEMBREELEMNZA
Y Bl

AR E SRR TR A FERE D
ERAEFEHEEMET 2R
=& - ReHAEREER -
AARKRRERERARIA KRB
MGRERKEEEREREER
TE R AF G 2 T ATREIR R BRIR
ERE-

MEEXREELEELZ AW
Bl & B E K DR EREE -
AEESREELEMZRA
BEREZEEATKREEER - BIEE
B RNEF 1B a R

i B 1% B BB E BT 1R - BE
ReELENUZREERNE
RIERT 2 fEat Al B S5 - 1
EENRmEL NBEEM E—
FEVEREESREELE
7 7 5R0RL (BB 1R T B 72 < AR
BE(HEREHNKITE) - BEE
1BRE BN B s ERR o

HEEF X NEEERAR ¢ —T—FFR 83



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014

3.

84

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(x)

(y)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position
at the end of reporting period or those that indicate
the going concern assumption is not appropriate
are adjusting events and are reflected in the
financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements when
material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

4,

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(a) Property, plant and equipment and

depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges
for the Group's property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. The Group will revise the depreciation
charge where useful lives and residual values are
different to those previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment as at 31 December 2014 was
HK$8,122,000 (2013: HK$6,546,000).

(b) Income taxes

Significant estimates are required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is
made. During the year, HK$3,740,000 (2013:
HK$4,927,000) of income tax was charged to profit
or loss based on the estimated profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014

4,

86

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (cont'd)

(c)

(d)

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and
doubtful debts based on assessments of the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor. Impairments arise
where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of bad and doubtful debts requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
actual result is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of
the trade and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses in the year in which such estimate has
been changed.

As at 31 December 2014, impairment loss for bad
and doubtful debts amounted to HK$1,070,000
(2013: HK$1,094,000).

Allowance for slow-moving inventories
Allowance for slow-moving inventories is
made based on the ageing and estimated net
realisable value of inventories. The assessment
of the allowance amount involves judgement
and estimates. Where the actual outcome in
future is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of
inventories and allowance charge/write-back in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.
No allowance for slow-moving inventories was
made for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:
nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

4,

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (cont'd)

(e) Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate

the present value.

The key assumptions that the management made
when performing impairment test of goodwill at

end of reporting period are:

For prepaid card and related operations (CGU 2):

(1) The Group will successfully launch and
operate “"SE@eMEET K" service in the
PRC countrywide as principally agreed by
Payment and Settlement Department of
the People’'s Bank of China (] A RERTT
Y H#EE F]) on a pilot basis without any

interruption.

(20 The Group will successfully reach
the planned number of cardholders
and contracted merchants in relation

service in the

to" BEBOIMEEN K"
following 5 years.

(3) The Group will successfully contract
with new contracted merchants of its
"SfEBeLE " service and bank card
payment acceptance service which agree to

pay at the Group's target rebate rates and
agree to use the Group's smart POS devices

in the following 5 years.

(4)  The Group will successfully renew its
Non-Financial Institute Payment Business

BOMEHRE S R A RT AT B

License (3E&

the People’s Bank of China in mid-2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014

4,

88

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (cont'd)

(e)

Impairment of goodwiill (Cont'd)

(5) The Group will successfully renew the
business development agreements with its
strategic business partners with terms not
less favorable than existing terms.

(6) There will be no major policy change in
the PRC which would hinder the Group’s
development of prepaid card and related
operations.

For travellers related services (CGU 3):

(7)  The Group will successfully increase the
number of sales points for its “tourism VIP
cards” products in the following 5 years.

For Onecomm (CGU 4):

(8)  Onecomm will successfully launch certain
new products to the market.

(99  Onecomm will be able to set the selling
price of its products and at the same time
control the cost of products so as to achieve
the target gross profit margin and sales
volume in the following 5 years.

The total carrying amount of goodwill at the end
of the reporting period was HK$686,451,000
(2013: HK$743,092,000) and an impairment
loss of HK$53,323,000 (2013: HK$228,787,000)
was recognised during the year. Details of the
impairment loss calculation are set out in note 20
to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

4,

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (cont'd)

(f)

Intangible assets and amortisation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related amortisation for the Group’s intangible
assets. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be finite, based on the expected usage
and technical obsolescence from the changes
in the market demands or services output from
the assets. Intangible assets with finite useful
lives are amortised over the expected usefu
economic lives and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible
assets may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for the intangible
assets with a finite useful life are reviewed by the
management at least at the end of each reporting
period.

The carrying amount of intangible assets as
at 31 December 2014 was approximately
HK$16,450,000 (2013: HK$10,210,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4,

90

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (cont'd)

(g) Recoverability of internally-generated

intangible asset

During the year, the Group reconsidered the
recoverability of its internally-generated intangible
asset arising from the Group's e-business
development, which is included in its consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 December
2014 at HK$8,527,000 (2013: HK$9,988,000). The
project continues to progress in a very satisfactory
manner, and customer reaction has reconfirmed
the Group's previous estimates of anticipated
revenues from the project. However, increased
competitor activity has caused the Group to
reconsider its assumptions regarding future
market shares and anticipated margins on these
products. This situation will be closely monitored,
and adjustments made in future periods, if future
market activity indicates that such adjustments are

appropriate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects

on the Group's financial performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conta) 5. HM¥EBREE®

(a) SMNEREER

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated in
the functional currencies of the Group entities. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2013 and 2014, the Group entities
had no significant assets or liabilities denominated
in currency other than respective functional
currencies.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of bank and cash balances
and trade and other receivables included in the
consolidated statement of financial position
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to the Group's financial assets.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
its trade receivables. The largest trade receivables
represent approximately 41% (2013: 53%) of total
trade receivables. In order to minimise credit risk,
the directors have delegated senior management
to be responsible for the determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures. In addition, the directors review the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
regularly to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are recognised for irrecoverable debts. In
this regard, the directors consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.
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EETHEES@AMNESE
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_T—NFE+_A=1+—HBLFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conta) 5. HM¥EBREE®

(¢) Liquidity risk (c) REBELEMR
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current REBZHRERTEHRERERA
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that RIEHRBEST K - BERE
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its ERTHRRSHE  UmERE
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. HERIARBESHRK -
The maturity analysis based in contractual REBHBEBERESLR
undiscounted cash flows of the Group's financial KIBERe M BB A DTN
liabilities is as follows: e
Less than Between
1year 2tob years Total
DPR—F MEZRF =X
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FHAT
At 31 December 2014 R-—ZT—NF
+=HA=+—H
Trade payables JETBR K 11,956 - 11,956
Accruals and other payables JEztE A & H thfE
B 47,271 - 47,271
Borrowings B 625 - 625
Amount due to a non- JEHHT B A A
controlling shareholder of a  FE#ERZ A% B
subsidiary EQrE] 666 - 666
Amounts due to directors  fETEEZIE 5 - 5
At 31 December 2013 NZT—=4
+=ZA=+—8
Trade payables BRI 4,961 - 4,961
Accruals and other payables [fEztE& A K& 1t
FEAT R 52,675 - 52,675
Amounts due to directors FERER A 9,253 - 9,253
Convertible bonds Al (E - 120,000 120,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conta) 5. HM¥EBREE®

(c) Liquidity risk (Conta) (c) RBELEAME)

Note:

Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the ‘'on demand or less than 1 year’ time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December
2014, the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of
the borrowings amounted to HK$625,000. Taking into
account the Group's financial position, the directors
do not believe that it is probable that the banks will
exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such borrowings
will be repaid one year after the end of the reporting
period in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreement. At that time, the
aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will
amount to HK$638,000.

Borrowings included bank loans that were expected by
the Group management to be repayable twelve months
after the end of each reporting period. The maturity
analysis in respect of borrowings (with interest thereon)
provided by the Group management incorporating the

BfE -

BB SREBIERZE TR EXXE
HBSTEBRMATIEE K DR —
Fl2HER - RZFE—NE+=A
=+—H  ZEERZERUBELRS
#8758 5 625,0008 7T © LRt A%
BRI - BEERABEBITAK
%ﬁﬁﬁm%%giwﬁﬁﬁo
§$ '%%%ﬁ%@?gﬁ%
%ﬁZ% E B B RS HAR
#”Eé FREE - @B A%
KA BIE & m i 45815 5638,000/8

JC °

EBREEASEEEERHENS
MREHEEER T —EARNE
BRITER - AEEBEEEH R
i EHRE R (RIERERET B )R
HZBHWADFOT

above expectation is as follows:

Less than
Borrowings R 1 year
DR —F
HK$'000
FAT

At 31 December 2014 —ME+=-/A=+—H 638
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BE-T-ME+-A=+—AILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conta) 5. BKEKRER®)
(d) Interest rate risk (d) RIREPE
The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises AREEmHZ N EEARKEH
from its bank deposits, fixed deposits, borrowings RITER - EHER - ERK
and loans to third parties. These deposits and loans BYE=ZNER ZFERK
to third parties bear interests at fixed rate varied BRTE=FERRERHHRE
with the then prevailing market condition. The B 2 BIE B R E - ERAR
borrowings bear interests at variable rate varied ENTMAEE 2 FBE X
with the then prevailing market condition. Boe
At 31 December 2014, if interest rates at that date R-E—WF+-_A=1—
had been 100 basis points higher with all other B & B3 ZH*E 10018
variables held constant, consolidated loss after tax - MATE R EIGRE
for the year would have been HK$315,000 lower N2 B FEAERTIEE
(2013: HK$1,068,000 lower), arising mainly as a 1B g R 315,000 7T ( =
result of lower interest income on these deposits T — =4 : 541,068,000 %
and loans to third parties. If interest rates had been L) TERBERZFFRN
100 basis points lower, with all other variables BTE=ZFERZBIERN B
held constant, consolidated loss after tax for the AFTEL = fied 1) &= B K100 B &
year would have been HK$315,000 higher (2013: B MATA EMEEIGRE T
HK$1,068,000 higher), arising mainly as a result of B2 AFEHRERTIEEER
higher interest income on these deposits and loans 212 HN1315,0008 L( —T—=
to third parties.  : 201,068,000 T) © *
ERHRZEGERERETE=
FERZB S BWAFTE -
(e) Categories of financial instruments at e) R=ZZFZ-—-—MNWFE+=A
31 December 2014 =t+—HzE&mIAEH
2014 2013
—Z2-mEF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT
Financial assets: MBEEE :
Loans and receivables (including cash &3 % fEURIE (B35
and cash equivalents) BeNMREEEY) 302,691 213,730
Available-for-sale financial assets Al HEEEE 62,525 -
Financial liabilities: BMEEaE
Financial liabilities measured at TR SE R NG T &2 2 BT 7
amortised cost aE 60,523 153,485
Financial liabilities at fair value N R = N = b
through profit or loss: MBars
Contingent consideration payable FERREAREB 10,110 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

5.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'a)

(f) Fair values
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their respective fair values.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The following disclosures of fair value measurements use
a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels
the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Group can access at
the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Level 3 inputs:

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of
the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE

5.

B RERERE &)

) AFE
AEBERERE MR R KRR
LHMBAERMBRERE
B BEZXHZAFERS -

AFERES
RFEATHLEENAERRE—
REFRZHHEEEMRINEE
BEMXMNZER - TXERATE
ARIBEAHEAEL MR FHER
RIRE R E R HEMAB B ERNT &
ABE D B =EgH -

AR AEEA AR E RS
WABE : DSZHEREESER
BERIAR™MIE 2 &
B CREHE) -
AR pl2 BRARNREZ B A
WARYE : BB EERHME
EEEDBSZEEN
BERARE -
53 BEXREZIAER
WARE : FHABE-

AEBZHRANEBREFNEHE
BIENES 2 A - EREALEB LT
Al = (@& Rz — -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_T—NFE+_A=1+—HBLFE
6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (conta) 6. AQFEAEZEE
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value (a) AFEHBZHKBNIEE :
hierarchy:
Fair value measurements using: Total
DAFEREE a5t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2014
&A1 & Rl2 FEI3 —EB—MmEF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
FET FET FET FER

Recurring fair value BERAFERNEE :
measurements:

Financial liabilities BKaE:

Financial liabilities at fair value %A TFEH ABZE Y

through profit or loss MBAIE
— Contingent —ERANRE

consideration payable (BI5¥31%37(a))

(Notes 31 and 37(a)) - - 10,110 10,110
The only financial liability subsequently measured HEWE—URBISAFEAZEAE
at fair value on Level 3 fair value measurement NHEZHBEERBBWEILR—
represents contingent consideration relating to ISt BHE AR AR ZHARE o &K
the acquisition of Beijing Onecomm Technology FEMERALIAREBE 2 WELE
Company Limited. No gain or loss for the current BRERER -

year relating to this contingent consideration had
been recognised in profit or loss.
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HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (conta) 6. AFERMNEZX®)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities measured at (b) TREFIBAEAFEZAERE

fair value based on level 3: R -
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or BN FEFIABm Z WA E

loss

2014
—E-IOF
HK$'000
FTHET
At 1 January R—H—H -

Fair value recognised from g — M B A R ATRER 2 AT E
acquisition of a subsidiary 10,110
At 31 December HNt+-—A=1+—H 10,110
(c) Disclosure of valuation process (¢) XEBR-Z=—NE+=

used by the Group and valuation
techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2014:

The Group's directors are responsible for the
fair value measurements of assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including
level 3 fair value measurements. The directors
report directly to the Board of Directors for these
fair value measurements. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the
directors and the Board of Directors at least twice
a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group
engaged Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited with the
recognised professional qualifications and recent
experience to perform the valuations.

A=t-HERZMGER
FRAFEUNEFERZ
HERMREABE 2K
=z
AEBEFREETUBRE
iR zBERBBZRFER
B BRARBRFERNE
Ao BEEEEKNEFTIWMEU
FRVFEAEE EFENES
g2 R&DBF MR GE
ZREFNEER -

AR BIBAFEAEZEAME
REBINEEERAERER
R {ELR P ETE
BRARETARME -
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HE_T—NFE+_A=1+—HBLFE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (conta) 6. ATEAEE®E
(c) Disclosure of valuation process (c) XEBR-F—HNFE+=
used by the Group and valuation B=+—HBEAZEER
techniques and inputs used in fair value FRAFENESRFERAZ
measurements at 31 December 2014: HEERMREARE 2
(Cont’d) G-
Level 3 fair value measurements R BN (BRI E %
Effect on Positive/
fair value for (negative)
Valuation Unobservable Possible increase of impact on
Description  technique inputs change inputs value
HEEZ
TAEER B A\ B @/
Bt fRER M [TPN ¢ A RER B HAFEZEE (A g
HK$'000
FABT
Contingent Discount cash Discount rate  +/-1% The higher the (97)/98
consideration  flows discount rate,
payable the lower of
fair value
ERSARE CZRIERES AhIR & +/-1% MIREYS A (97)/98
mE FEBIK
Stock price +/-5% The higher the 506/(506)
stock price,
the higher of
fair value
BB +/-5% REMS  AF 506/(5006)
BHS
Profit after tax +/~20% The higher 5,055/(5,055)
the profit
after tax, the
higher of fair
value
R 1EE +/-20% PR A1 08 )i 5,055/(5,055)
% ATE
=

98
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7.

HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE

TURNOVER 7. EEHE
An analysis of the Group's turnover for the year is as REERFAZEEEINTAT :
follows:
2014 2013
—ZE-MF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Sale of goods HEE M 66,342 121,303
Rendering of services IRHEARA 14,880 21,593
81,222 142,896
OTHER INCOME 8. Hftilg A
2014 2013
—Z2-mF —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FA&TT
Interest income B A 3,423 3,213
Gain on deregistration of a branch —Ro A EIEUHEF 2 Wi 812 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYE MENEEZ
equipment Uzt 201 -
Government grant BR AT R BL - 569
Others Eih 25 161
4,461 3,943
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9.

100

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has four (2013: three) operating segments as
follows:

General — trading of mobile phones, computers,
trading communication equipments, currency
operations sorters and other goods

Prepaid card — provision of third party payment

and related  services and consultancy services; and
operations marketing and sale of consumer goods
in form of prepaid gift cards in the
People’s Republic of China (“the PRC")
Travellers — provision of air-ticketing services and
related related customer services
services
Onecomm  — provision of third party payment system

solution and sales of integrated smart
point of sales (“POS") devices

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business
units that offer different products and services. They are
managed separately because each business requires
different technology and marketing strategies.

The Group's other reportable segment includes certain
inactive operations. None of the segments meets any
of the quantitative thresholds for determining reportable
segment. The information of the other operating
segments is included in the ‘others’ column.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as those described in note 3 to the financial
statements. Segment profits or losses do not include
equity-settled share-based payment, impairment of
goodwill and imputed interest on convertible bonds.
Segment assets do not include deferred tax assets,
goodwill and available-for-sale financial assets and other
corporate assets. Segment non-current assets do not
include financial instruments, deferred tax assets and
goodwill.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

9.

HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (conta) 9. 2EER®E)
The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers AEERAFE=ZFNERTSERE
as if the sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at TR BoEMEE RERARK
current market prices. BRI o
Information about operating segment profit or loss, assets EBNEWMOERFNEEREELZ
and liabilities: BT
Prepaid
General card  Travellers
trading  and related related
operations  operations services  Onecomm Others Total
k&% BFR
2K BEEE HRERBRE — RN Rt aif
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TEn TiEn TiEn TiEn T
Year ended B2-E-pmf
31 December 2014 TZA=T-ALEE
Revenue from external RENPER 2 NE
customers 51,160 2M 7,151 - - 81,222
Segment profit/{loss) AR/ (BR) (3,235) (16,346) (14,690) - (710) (34,981)
Interest income TN 2,332 1,054 7 - 30 3,423
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH (855) (1513) (2,380) - - (4,748)
Income tax expense i tilaha (730) (3,010) - - - (3,740)
Other material items of non-cash EHIReENER -
items:
- Intangible assets written off - BV EENH (928) (167) - - - (1,095)
Additions to segment RENBARYEE
non-current assets 192 5,277 1,106 8534 - 15,109
As at 31 December 2014 R-E-ME
t2A=t-A
Segment assets NREE 137,252 115,589 14,734 20,493 128 288,196
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9.

102

HE_T—NFE+_A=1+—HBLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont'a) 9. 7oEER®
Information about operating segment profit or loss, assets BRI 2RO ERNKBEEREEY
and liabilities: (Cont'd) ERAT - (8)
General  Prepaidcard  Travellers
trading  andrelated related
operations  operations services  Onecomm Others Total
—RE5H BRFR
% BEEE  EEEERS B -] B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAR TAR TAR TAR TAR
Year ended 31 December 2013 HE-2-=F
TZA=T-HLEER
Revenue from external ReNdER e
customers 98,213 39,302 5,381 - - 142,8%
Segment profit/(loss) HEET/ (B8 9,069 (4,258) (14,984) - (746) (10,919)
Interest income FIBWA 1,466 1,661 86 - - 3213
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (1,605) (1173) (1,265) - - (4,043)
Income tax expense FEHRY (1374) (3,553) - - - (4,927)
Other material items of EMIEREEAER :
non-cash items:
- Gain on fair value change of -R-BRERERE
investment in an associate ATEREYE - 1273 - - - 1273
- Impairment of intangible assets ~ —EFEERE (933) - - - - (933)
- Impairment of amount due from ~ — e — B 7]
an associate FERE (2,865) - (1,868) - - (4,733)
Additions to segment non-current  SFENBERHAE
assets 2,018 739 4,406 - - 7,163
As at 31 December 2013 W_E-=%
+-A=t+-A
Segment assets NEEE 81,467 145,141 12,931 - 392 239,931
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9.

HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (conta) 9. pEERE)
Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or loss: SN - RNSEE 2 HER
2014 2013
—E—MF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue g
Total revenue of reportable segments A 20 e85 81,222 142,896
Loss 58
Total profit or loss of reportable segments =] 2548 7 % 5k
Esi84a%E (34,981) (10,919)
Unallocated corporate income and AOMEERAR
expenses, net s - /F5 (17,365) (11,744)
Impairment of goodwill HERE (53,323) (228,787)
Equity-settled share-based payment R AL B R (D 2 (N FR0A (4,463) (9,173)
Imputed interest on convertible bonds R ESEET B (9,714) (13,187)
Consolidated loss before income tax AT ST AI4R B 18 (119,846) (273,810)
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments 2o fE BELEEE 288,196 239,931
Unallocated amounts: ROBLERE -
Available-for-sale financial assets AR ERBEE 62,525 -
Deferred tax assets BEERIAE E 1,876 1,918
Goodwill EES 686,451 743,092
Other corporate assets HirEEE 66,488 2,637
Consolidated total assets IREEEBRE 1,105,536 987,578
Geographical information: @ &Y

No separate analysis of segment information by
geographical information is presented as the Group's
revenue and non-current assets are principally attributable
to a single geographical region, which is the PRC.

HEEF X NEEERAR ¢ —T—FFR
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HE_T—NFE+_A=1+—HBLFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conta) 9. 7oEER®
Revenue from major customers: REFERP 2 HWE
2014 2013
—F-mFE T =F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
General trading segment —REFDER
Largest customer SN 12,026 34,117
Second largest customer E_AEFP 9,656 24,145
Third largest customer FZREF 5,243 18,042
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BLERZA
2014 2013
—F-mFE —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T
Imputed interest on convertible bonds AR ESIEET B
(Note 32) (H3E32) 9,714 13,187
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. FAEHMAX
2014 2013
—E—-mF —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FA&TT
Current tax — the PRC BNEAR 1R — AP
Provision for the year FREE 3,350 4,798
Under-provision in prior years BEFERET R 390 129
3,740 4,927
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HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)

PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been provided at a
rate of 25% (2013: 25%). However, one of the Group's
subsidiaries has been recognised as a “New and High
Technology Enterprise” in the PRC and were therefore
subject to a preferential tax are of 15% (2013: 15%) for
the year ended 31 December 2014.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since
the Group has no assessable profit for the year.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretation and practices in respect thereof.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and
the product of loss before tax multiplied by the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax rate is as follows:

11. FEHEX@)

FEMCEMEHEEA25% (=
F:25%) °

z—=

AR AEBEF —H

MEBARMERSTE SHRME

| At #HE-Z—
:+ Eutimé
T —=F 15%) °

mE+=

H

BEMHE15%

PP AN 68 B A (R I 4 A AR R R B i

M A EAER BB NS TR -

Hofth b [ &SRB F) 2 BIE S iR AR
SEERGRAEBRR ZRITHRE - AR

BEERBRALAE  mREMEMHE

o

S HL 5 X SRR B AT BT IR SR AP B

%Pﬁ SERMERASERZERNOT ¢

2014 2013
—E—MEF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Loss before tax MrF A ET I8 (119,846) (273,810)
Tax at the PRC Enterprise Income AR BEPEERER25%
Tax rate of 25% (2013: 25%) FEZHB(ZE—=4:
25%) (29,962) (68,452)
Tax effect of expenses that are NIRRT 2 RIS 2
not deductible 20,057 65,563
Tax effect of temporary differences not RERGR =R 2 IS &
recognised 607 b5
Tax effect of unused tax losses not KB A RERIBEE
recognised MEgE 13,018 9,148
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not BB RERHIBEEY
previously recognised MG - (793)
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETE 390 129
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries fEB A& TREF R 7 & (370) (723)
Income tax expense FIS B 3,740 4,927
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HE_T—NFE+_A=1+—HBLFE

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12. REEFB
The Group's loss for the year is stated after charging/ REBFABE NG, (GFA) SR
(crediting) the following: &Y
2014 2013
—ZT-MF ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Auditor’'s remuneration 2GR 1,155 1,092
Amortisation of intangible assets M B EE 2,464 1,460
Cost of inventories sold HETF S 44,806 90,830
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BB MERETE
equipment 2,359 2,656
Directors’ emoluments e
— As directors —ERES 429 501
— For management —1EEEEE 4,799 5176
5,228 5,677
Gain on deregistration of a branch —Mo R RIBUHEM Z Wk (812) -
(Gain)/loss on disposals of property, plant HEWE  HELKEEZ
and equipment (Wzx) K518 (201) 5
Operating leases charges EEHEST 8,678 6,939
Exchange loss ()] 1,392 381
Property, plant and equipment MBI - BB LB
written off - 82
Impairment of prepayment AR RIERE 75 -
Other receivables written off HilgE B Ath FE LU FR IR - 659
Impairment loss on trade receivables e R FORE BB - 1,080
Intangible assets written off WisEPEE 1,095 -
Impairment of intangible assets B EAERE - 933
Impairment of goodwill EERE 53,323 228,787
Impairment of amount due from JE W — Pt 8 A RIFIBRVE
an associate - 4,733
Staff costs including directors’ BIRA(REEEHM)
remuneration
Salaries, bonus and allowances TE& - fEALRIRR 36,390 29,468
Equity-settled share-based payments T RN E ] 4,463 9,173
Retirement benefits scheme R FET B
contributions 9,567 7,686
50,420 46,327
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE

13. EEREEME

EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EE=M<
The emoluments of each of directors were as FEEEZHEWMT ¢
follows:
Retirement
Equity-settled henefit
Salariesand  share-based scheme
Fees allowances payments  contributions Total
‘ O BEEERS  B4EA
wE  IEREE THFE HE AEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin TiEn T T i
Executive directors H7Es
Guan Guisen Y - 1,800 - 1 1817
Lei Chunxiong ) - 1,200 - 17 1217
Cao Chunmeng BEH . - 1,200 458 17 1675
Yan Xiaotian (Note) BRALE () - 90 - - %0
- 4,290 458 5 4,799
Independent non-executive directors BUFHNES
Wang Zhongmin IR 120 - pxi - 143
Gu Jiawang A 120 - 3 - 143
Fong Chi Wah it 120 - 3 - 143
Totalfor 2014 “E-EE 360 4,290 527 51 5,228
Executive directors H7Es
Guan Guisen gsn - 1,800 - 15 1815
Lei Chunxiong B3 = 1,200 - 15 1215
Cao Chunmeng BEH - 1,200 931 15 2,146
- 4200 931 45 5,176
Independent non-executive directors BUFH1ES
Wang Zhongmin I8R 120 - 4 - 167
Gu Jiawang ARl 120 - 47 - 167
Fong Chi Wah hEE 120 - 47 - 167
Total for 2013 “E-CHEgG 360 4200 1,072 15 5,671

Note: Appointed on 24 December 2014.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors
waived any emoluments during the year (2013: nil).

HEEF X NEEERAR ¢ —T—FFR

sy : RZZE—WOFE+-A=+H
BEZRT -

FRITHRAH R EMESHRE
BENE(ZF—=F: §)-
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_T—NFE+_A=1+—HBLFE
13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. EEREEME @)
EMOLUMENTS (cont'a)
(b) Five highest paid individuals’ (b) EEBRESFMALZHME
emoluments

The five highest paid individuals in the Group
during the year included three (2013: three)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments of the
remaining two (2013: two) individuals are set out

FAREBRAEERTMAL
BE=R(Z2E—=F: =%)
B HEBMeH R L5
AR - HBTME(ZE—=
F:WB) AL ZBeET w0

below: T :

2014 2013

—E-ImF —T=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHEIT

Basic salaries and allowances HARTE N =2Bh 1,266 1,154

Equity-settled share-based payments R4 ER% (5 X (<5518 116 705
Retirement benefits scheme IRIREAFT B

contributions 17 15

1,399 1,874

The emoluments fell within the following band:

NFTFIEEZ S -

Number of individuals

A
2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FiET
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,000/8 7T 2 2

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the directors or the highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

14.

15.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
(the "MPF Scheme"”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions to
the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries
and wages subject to a monthly maximum amount of
contribution of HK$1,500 (before 1 June 2014: HK$1,250)
per employee and vest fully with employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries established
in the PRC are members of a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to the
central pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits.
The local municipal government undertakes to assume
the retirement benefits obligations of all existing and
future retired employees of these subsidiaries. The
only obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to
the central pension scheme is to meet the required
contributions under the scheme.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The loss for the year attributable to owners of
the Company included a loss of approximately
HK$141,542,000 (2013: HK$247,104,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

14.

15.

HEEF X NEEERAR ¢ —T—FFR

HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE

EBARBEFETE
REERBEEBRG|MEAE S EIE
BIEE e fl M A EI([RfE ST
2] HIBEAEREBREELSHE -
REEFARBESTE 2 HKEHIET
BRFE5%:E  BREEGAH
HEEREm A1,5008 0 (ZE—mER
A—H#1 : 1,250/87T) © WHRIRIE®
BEEIEAE 28BN ES -

ERBERIZASENBARRES
EEMHBUTEE 2 REWREE -
ZEMBARARBEREEEATER
FezaETaEDL  MhRENRGTE
R - UBATRIKEF] o B3R
A GEREZSHBARMARE
KB RKER 2 RIKEHNEE © %
E B R R B R RARIRFH B 2
—EEAREFEEL IR HR -

RRABEEAREFRER

RAARBBEANEBEFABERED
RAEARRUBREREEZEBELD
141,542,000 8 L (ZF — = F -
247,104,000/ 7T) °
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16.

110

PR AR AL

LOSS PER SHARE 16.

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on
the following:

HE_T—NFE+_A=1+—HBLFE

BREE
BRENEBERREA TSIEAE

2014 2013
“E-mF —Z-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET
Loss g
Loss for the purpose of calculating basic loss Bt EBREABE BB
per share (122,724) (279,352)
Number of shares ('000) RIBEE (THR)
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—BEZET 2L RK 4,707,139 4,707,139
Effect of exercise of share options TTIEREARE 7 2 69,726 -
Effect of issue from placing RERER T EFE 172,603 -
Effect of exercise of warrants TERRERE TR 57,205 -
Effect of conversion of convertible bonds HemaREsr g2 165,767 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AETEERERRTZ
for the purpose of calculating basic earnings LA g g
per share 5,172,440 4,707,139

As exercise of the Group’s outstanding share options,
warrants and contingent consideration payable for the
year ended 31 December 2014 would be anti-dilutive, no
diluted loss per share was presented for the year ended
31 December 2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the effects
of the Company’s potential ordinary shares are either
anti-dilutive or no dilutive effect as the exercise prices
are above the average share price during the reporting
period. No diluted loss per share was presented for the
year ended 31 December 2013.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% BERRE

Group
PS4
Furniture
Leasehold and office Motor
improvements  equipment vehicles Total
HENE HAR
£ WAERE RE &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00
THT FET AL THT
Cost A
At 1 January 2013 W_E—=F—HF—H 1,507 7,673 505 9,685
Additions AE 1,853 1,318 - 3171
Acquisition of a subsidiary W — MM B AR 25 266 - 291
Disposals/written off HE i (310) (148) - (458)
Exchange differences fEHESE 72 237 15 324
At 31 December 2013 and RZZ—=F+-A=1+-HK
1 January 2014 “E-F-A—H 3,147 9,346 520 13,013
Additions NE 3,536 784 4,322
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEE— R B AR - 797 - 797
Disposals/written off HE i - (1,420) (127) (1,547)
Exchange differences R ESE (69) (212) (14) (295)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-MF+=A=+—H 3,080 12,047 1,163 16,290
Accumulated depreciation ZRINE
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=%—F—H 1,082 2,628 315 4,025
Charge for the year KEERY 480 2,061 11 2,656
Disposals/written off HE /i (310) (60) - (370)
Exchange differences [EHES 40 104 12 156
At 31 December 2013 and RZE—=F+-A=+—-8BxK
1 January 2014 “Z-NFE—-A—H 1,292 4,733 442 6,467
Charge for the year AEERY 340 1,874 145 2,359
Disposals/written off HE /M - (385) (122) (507)
Exchange differences [EHE (30) (111) (10) (151)
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NF+-A=+—H 1,602 6,111 455 8,168
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-NFE+=A=+—H 1,478 5,936 708 8,122
At 31 December 2013 R-B—=F+=-fF=1—H 1.855 4613 78 6.546

HEEF X NEEERAR ¢ —T—FFR

111



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

PR AR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_T—NFE+_A=1+—HBLFE
18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RAHBARIZIRE
Company
¥ /N
2014 2013
—E—-F —_F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Unlisted investments, at cost JFEETRE - R 1,018,088 1,018,088
Less: impairment losses S OREETE (341,000) (231,000)
677,088 787,088
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE LS B BB A R FRIE
— Current assets —REEE 146,068 130,267
— Non-current assets —IEREEE 152,400 -
298,468 130,267
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE B A B FRIE 1,058 825
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, FEUT FEAT I B A B FRIB T B A
interest-free and repayable on demand. B ERBERENER o
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 WEBARRZ—E—mFE+_A=+—
are as follows: A2 BT
Place of incorporation/
registration and Issued and paid up
operation capital Percentage of
Name S ERE CROREMRE/ ownership interest  Principal activities
2R EEHY TMER BRERGZEON FTEEH
Direct  Indirect
EE 5
Country Praise Enterprises Limited ~ British Virgin Islands 769,231 ordinary shares of ~ 100% - Investment holding
("Country Praise”) LBRAEE no par value REER
769,231 REME(E L BRI
China Prepay Group Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Inactive
BB 10,0007 IRe%
Splendid Win Enterprise Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
BiE 10,0007 REER
Bright Voyage Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 - 100%  Investment holding
B A 50,000% 7 REZR
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (cont'a) 18. RHEBARZRE#)

Place of incorporation/
registration and

Issued and paid up

operation capital Percentage of
Name S/ BERE CRIREARE/ ownership interest  Principal activities
£ ] EMER BRERGZEAL  TEEE
Direct  Indirect
Ef 83
Bright Voyage Global Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Inactive
R 10,0007 fEex
BREBOLR)RETHERAT] The PRC RMB123,330,000 - 100%  Trading of mobile
(Beijing Shangyin Investment s AK123,330,0007C phones and computer
Consultancy Co. Ltd.) equipments
EEVHEERERRE
ERRAEREERHERAT The PRC RMB101,000,000 - 100%  Information system
([ERXRER]) T E AE#101,000,0007 maintenance and
(Beijing Tiantongsaibo Information development services
Technology Co. Ltd.) (“Beijing BEZRHERFRRE
Tiantongsaibo”)
tReERAXERERAA The PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100%  Provision of prepaid card
(Beijing Gaohuitong Commercial s AKE100,000,0007C and related customer
Management Co. Ltd.) Services
REBNRREERPRE
BN ERNE RS AR AR The PRC RMBS,000,000 - 100%  Provision of prepaid card
(&R H AEH5,000,0007 and related customer
(Shenyang Shanglian Huitong Services
Commercial Services Co. Ltd.) REBA-RRIEBR PR
("Shenyang Shanglian”)
MMERSERRARAR The PRC RMB4,000,000 - 80%  Provision of prepaid card
(MM ER)) H AE4,000,0007 and related customer
(Hangzhou Qianbao Gaohui Services
Technology Co. Ltd.) REENRREBEPRE
(“Hangzhou Qianbao”)
BERENEERERAT The PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Inactive
(Shengyang Tonghui Technology i AR%5,000,0007 gmE%
Development Co. Ltd.|
IREPEINBERR The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Prepaid gift card marketing
(ARt RSERBEERAR) @ AKH10,000,0007C and sales

(Beijing Zhixiang Chuangfu
Commercial Co. Ltd.)
(Formerly known as

tRREREEARAF)

HEEF X NEEERAR ¢ —T—FFR
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18.

Place of incorporation/
registration and

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

Issued and paid up

HE_T—NFE+_A=1+—HBLFE

18. RMIBARZ®RE (&)

operation capital Percentage of
Name S/ ERE CRIREARE/ ownership interest  Principal activities
2R k] TRER REREREDL TEER
Direct  Indirect
Ef 83
LERERZERAR The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Prepaid gift card marketing
(Shanghai Jinghui Commercial HE AR 1,000,000 and sales
Co. Ltd.) BB FERRHE
ERnEREEARAT The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Inactive
(Jinan Gaohuitong Commercial e AE1,000,0007C LS
Co. Ltd.)
MNEEREERAT The PRC RMB2,000,000 - 100%  Inactive
(Hangzhou Gaohuitong Commercial ~ H1E] AEKE2,000,0007T Rt
Co. Ltd))
AT EREREFERARAR The PRC RMB2,000,000 - 100%  Prepaid phone card
(T3 ) P AR2,000,0007 distribution
(Shenzhen Shanglian Huitong BREFERHHE
Commercial Management Co. Ltd.)
("Shenzhen Shanglian”)
SEERLRRRERAR The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
(Kopu (Beijing) Technology Co. Ltd.) & AR10,000,0007 REER
SEBRRERAELR)ERAT The PRC RMB1,500,000 - 100%  Online airticket agency
(Kopu Ticket Agency Service (Beijing) AR %1,500,0007 business
Co. Ltd.) BIREREEE
RRER(OLRETER The PRC RMB4,000,000 - 95%  Travellers related services
EREADA(RE]) el AR¥4,000,0007T in the PRC
(Kanghui Financial (Beijing) R B B RS
E-Commerce Co. Ltd.) (“Kanghui”)
ER-BRMRRARAT The PRC RMB23,000,000 - 51%  Provision of total solution
([—1838M]) i AE23,000,0007C for third party payment
(Beijing Onecomm Technology system and sales of
Company Limited) (“Onecomm”) integrated smart point
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18.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities
of the Group.

The following table shows information on the subsidiaries
that have non-controlling interests (“NCI") material to the
Group. The summarised financial information represents
amounts before inter-company eliminations.

HE—

18.

E-NFE+_A=+—HIFE

B AR ZRE#)
LEBNFBYEAEEMELS -
%8 (a2 BB A TS -

TRETRFAANEE IR ERER(3F
EREE ) 2B RARER - MIEE
MM ERREEARRIBEHAE
L

Name Z18 Onecomm
— IS 1 N
2014
—E—-mF
Principal place of business/country of incorporation I 485 2h S MAL 7 B The PRC
R El
% of ownership interests/voting rights held by NCI Fra RS %, FEIRAR iE RS IR 24 49%/49%
HK$'000
FET

At 31 December: Rt+—A=+—8":
Non-current assets FEREEE 4,563
Current assets MBNEE 11,939
Current liabilities mEAE (5,832)
Net assets BEFE 10,670
Accumulated NCI RIEFEIERR R 5,228

As at 31 December 2014, the bank and cash balances
of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to HK$97,061,000 (2013:
HK$107,961,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

HEEF X NEEERAR ¢ —T—FFR

NZZE—NE+_A=+—H K&
EhEMNBEARINUARE(ARE])
FHE 2 #R77 RIS 842 E97,061,000
B (ZZT— =4 :107,961,000/8
TL) o AR H R BINE BB (T
HNE B BARDI) R(HEE - SE R T E
EIBHIED °
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BEEE
Group
PN
Computer
Customer Technology software
relationship  know-how (internally
(Note a) (Noteb)  generated) Total
EFEE B AR LG
(Fizta) (MiEEDb) (REPERE) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx TET TET TR
Cost B
At1 January 2013 N-Z—=%-F—8 - - 9214 9214
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEE— R B AR 255 - - 255
Additions NE - - 3,446 3,446
Exchange differences ERER 7 - 303 310
At 31 December 2013 and RZE—=F+-A=1+—H
1 January 2014 k=E—mF—H—H 262 - 12,963 13,225
Acquisition of a subsidiary YR B AR - 7,757 - 7,757
Additions NE - - 2,261 2,261
Written off sy - - (1,325) (1,325)
Exchange differences BN ZER (6) - (292) (298)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+=A=+—H 256 7,757 13,607 21,620
Accumulated amortisation and EE##ERHESE
impairment loss
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=F—F—H - - 575 575
Charge for the year REERX 39 - 1,421 1,460
Impairment loss RERE - - 933 933
Exchange differences B HEE 1 - 46 47
At 31 December 2013 and RZE—=F+-"A=1+—H
1 January 2014 k=ZF-mF—H—H 40 - 2,975 3,015
Charge for the year AFEERY 51 - 2,413 2,464
Written off isH - - (230) (230)
Exchange differences N =% (1) - (78) (79)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+=-A=1+—H 92 - 5,080 5,170
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2014 RZT-ME+=A=+—H 166 7,757 8,627 16,450
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+-A=1+—H 222 - 9,988 10,210
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19.

20.

HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS cont'a) 19. BFREE®)

Notes: BiteE -

(a) Customer relationship represented the future (a) EPAREASEEERS ORI
economic benefit to the Group arising from regular BURPREBEEBRAMEME
contact between individual customer and the business A2 RRESE e (MH3E37(b)) -
entity before business combination (Note 37(b)). The HEHRSF(ZE—=F : 55) o
amortising period is 5 years (2013: 5 years).

(b) Technology know-how was acquired on 31 December (b) BEM#E_Z—NWF+=A
2014 from acquisition of Onecomm (Note 37(a)). The =+ — BUHE SRR M (KT EE37(a))
amortisation period is 5 years. RFIE1T © BESHEHIRG4EF -

GOODWILL 20. mE

Prepaid card Travellers

General trading and related  related services Onecomm

operations operations (Note 37(b)) (Note 37(a))
("CGU1") ("CGU2") ("CGU3") ("cau4") Total

TR HERBRR -REN

-REAEH EBEE (HiEE37(b) (&E37(a))
(REELEM) (REELEM) (REELEMW) (REELEW) ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TERL TERL ThETL TERL TR

Cost A

At 1 January 2013 R-5-ZF-F-H 13344 889,653 - - 1,102,997

Acquisition of a subsidiary E-HHEAT - - 4691 - 4691

Exchange differences EiEE 5,986 24,959 126 - 31,071

At 31 December 2013 and W_E-=EfZA=1-BR

1 January 2014 “E-NF-5-F 219330 914,612 4817 - 1,138,759

Acquisition of a subsidiary Y- - - - 13,186 13,186

Exchange differences EHES (4872 (20,310) (107 - (25,289)

At 31 December 2014 NZE-METZA=T-H 214,458 894,302 4710 13,186 1,126,656

Accumulated impaitment losses ZRAERE

At1 January 2013 R-5-=F-f-H - 162,326 - - 162,326

Impairment loss recognised in FEERDZAERR

the curment year 164,794 63,993 - - 228787
Exchange differences EiES - 4554 - - 4554
At 31 December 2013 and RE-ZE+-A=+-AR

1 January 2014 “Z-PE-A-A 164,794 230,873 - - 395,667
Impaiment loss recognised in the FEREDZAERR

current year h3323 - - - h3.323
Exchange differences EiEE (3659) (5,126) - - (8,785
At 31 December 2014 R-F-mE+-A=1-H 214,458 205,147 - - 440,205

HEEFXNEEERAR ¢ —F—
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20. GOODWILL (conta) 20. BEEE)
Prepaid card Travellers
General trading and related  related services Onecomm
operations operations (Note 37(b)) (Note 37(a))
("CGU1") ("CGU2") ("CGU3") ("CGU4") Total
BHFR  KEREEE -
-REAEH BERR (K&£37(b) (Hr&E37(a))
(REELEM)) (REELEM2)) (REELEMS)) (REELEM4) aif
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Thn TR TR ThR Tikn
Carrying amount RakE
At 31 December 2014 R-R-ME+ZA=T-R - 668,555 4710 13,186 686,451
At 31 December 2013 R-E-=E+-F=1-H 54,536 683,739 4817 - 743,092

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated,
at acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit
from that business combination.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been
determined on the basis of their value in use using
discounted cash flow method. The key assumptions for
the discounted cash flow method are set out in note 4(e)
to the consolidated financial statements and also include
those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and
budgeted gross margin and turnover during the period.
The Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth
rates are based on long-term average economic growth
rate of the geographical area in which the businesses of
the CGUs operate. Budgeted gross margin and turnover
are based on past practices and expectations on market
development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by the directors
for the next five years with the residual period using the
growth rate of 3% (2013: 3%). This rate does not exceed
the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
markets.
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20.

GOODWILL (conta)

The pre-tax rates used to discount the forecast cash
flows from the Group’s CGU 1, CGU 2, CGU 3 and CGU
4 are 31.26% (2013: 31.26%), 29.66% (2013: 30.60%),
33.22% (2013: 33.04%) and 29.95% (2013: N/A)
respectively.

At 31 December 2014, due to changes in market
condition, the Group has revised its cash flow forecast
for CGU 1. The directors have consequently determined
to impair the goodwill allocated to CGU 1 amounting
to HK$53,323,000 (2013: HK$164,794,000). No other
impairment of the assets of CGU 1 is considered
necessary.

At 31 December 2013, due to changes in market
condition, the Group revised its cash flow forecast for
CGU 2 and the goodwill allocated to CGU 2 was therefore
been impaired by HK$63,993,000.

As CGU 1 and CGU 2 have been reduced to the
recoverable amounts, any adverse change in the
assumptions used in the calculation of recoverable
amounts would result in further impairment losses.

BE_T—

20.

HEEFXNEEERAR ¢ —F—

ME+—A=t—RIFE

BEE)
AUBREAAREERESEEEN
1 MEeELESM2  REELESAMSI
LREEEENLIRERE ZBRIA
RSB A31.26% (T —=4F :

31.26% ) » 29.66% (—&F—=
30.60% ) ~ 33.22% (= ZE— =4 :
33.04% ) };29.95% (ZZFE—=%F : |
WA -
RZZE—WNWF+-_A=+—H"

RmREs  KEEDE .:Tﬁfﬁi
EXBMNIESTREEN - ERE
ARENPEERESEEEMT ZEER
{E%53,323,000/8 (- T —=
164,794,000/8 L) ° S EEBEAL
BEZHMBEFRRBLTERK -

#—?—E$+—HZ+—E'§

nEH  AEBEEITHERES
%$${42fﬁi/ﬂb§%§ Al ROBRE
BeEABN22 BB EIMmBE
63,993,000/ 7T °

ReEABMNINASEEEN2EH
WEMREIEEE - METE KBS
RrE 2 B2 AT e S E N
IR — R EEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_T—NFE+_A=1+—HBLFE
21. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 21. RA—REBEARZKRE
2014 2013
—E-lmEF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T
Unlisted investment in the PRC: R ZIEETRE
Fair value of 25% equity interest 25% AT 2 AT E - 1,273
Deemed acquisition cost of RIEUEEMTB AR A
a subsidiary (Note 37(b)) (MI7E37(0)) - (1,273)
Details of the Group's associate at 31 December 2014 REFRBEANTRN _Z—NE+_A
were as follows: =t+—BZFEAT
Place of incorporation/
registration and Percentage of equity
operation interest attributable
Name HMRY/ SRR Registered capital to the Group  Principal activities
£ BN &R rEERGRERSL TEER
FEAR (IR ETEK The PRC RMB4,000,000 25%  Travellers related
BREMAR([FE]) e AEKH#4,000,0007C services in the PRC
(Kanghui Financial (Beijing) P B 2 k& AR AR
E-commerce Co. Ltd.)
("Kanghui”)
22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 22. AIHEMBEEE
ASSETS
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-lmEF ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Unlisted equity securities FE LTG5 62,525 -
Analysed as: PaX i
Current assets BB E - -
Non-current assets EMENEE 62,525 -
62,525 -

120 China Innovationpay Group Limited ® Annual Report 2014



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE
22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 22. OHEEMBEE®)
ASSETS (cont'd)
Unlisted equity securities with carrying amount of FETRAZTLHFREEZRKANE
HK$62,525,000 (2013: nil) were carried at cost as they do 62,525,0008 7L ( - T — =4 : &)%)
not have a quoted market price in an active market and B AE5FmERM S EMISHR
their fair value cannot be reliably measured. EBERTEAEAEEQTE-
23. INVENTORIES 23. FE
Group
rEH
2014 2013
—ES—uE =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Finished goods R B 6,770 1,921
24. TRADE RECEIVABLES 24. FEWERX

The Group's trading terms with customers are mainly
on credit. The credit terms generally range from 30 to
60 days. For new customers, payment in advance is
normally required. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on the
invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

AEEREFPZEZGRREERE
E - EEH—&NFI0E60H - HRX
MEPME - —RAAMNRIE - A%
B S R Mo [o] 22 8 Wk e 55 R AR )
EETHERaMER -

AEE 2z BURZ (% E A HE
8 WO HRREE) 2 REDITT

Group

AEE
2014 2013

—E-MmEF —-F—=

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
0 to 30 days 0£30H 21,148 40,050
31 to 60 days 31HZ=60H 2,556 1,424
61 to 90 days 61HZE90H 964 841
91 to 180 days 91HZ180H 4,224 2,147
Over 180 days 180H LA L 30,701 4,108
59,593 48,570

HEEF X NEEERAR ¢ —T—FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_T—NFE+_A=1+—HBLFE
24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (conta) 24. FEWERR (&)
As at 31 December 2014, an allowance was made R-ZE—NNFF+=-A=+—HH®
for estimated irrecoverable trade receivables for HEr AU B 2 e UK BR 3k 7B B
approximately HK$1,070,000 (2013: HK$1,094,000). ##71,070,0008 T(ZF— =4 :
1,094,000 7T ) °
Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables: JRE UK B SR 1 2 S BR
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—F-mE —F—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
At 1 January n—H—H 1,094 -
Allowance for the year FREE - 1,080
Exchange difference P ZE%E (24) 14
At 31 December nt+—A=+—H 1,070 1,094

As of 31 December 2014, trade receivables of
HK$34,926,000 (2013: HK$6,394,000) were past due but
not impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default.
The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as
follows:

R-_E—NME+—_A=+—8 - ElR
BR 734,926,000 L (=T — =4 :
6,394,000/ 7T ) BB BB R RE © 3%
LREE L LI BB RSk 2 BN
BFEEM - 25 RUWERERZ R DT
T

Group

rEE
2014 2013

—E—-F —_F—=

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Up to 30 days 30BZ 964 140
31 to 60 days 31HZE60H 3,193 471
61 to 90 days 61HZE90H 1,029 994
91 to 180 days 91HZE180H 7,334 1,633
Over 180 days 180H A L 22,406 3,256
34,926 6,394

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables
are denominated in RMB as at 31 December 2013 and

2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER  25.

AARE - REREMWER

RECEIVABLES b
Group
rEE
2014 2013
— Lk —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Prepayments SN B 20,651 9,865
Deposits %B& 31,705 31,559
Loans to independent third-parties MBULE=FEH 2B
(Note) (BF3E) 43,455 7,927
Other receivables H th e Y 3k 5,343 16,035
101,154 65,386
Long-term deposits classified as non- NERIERBEE R
current assets b (28,281) (28,216)
72,873 37,170

HEAFZNEEARAR e —T—NFFH 123



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER  25.

RECEIVABLES (cont'd)

Note:

Details of loans to independent third-parties are as follows:

Name
Z18

HE_T—NFE+_A=1+—HBLFE

&)
GEE

MIEE=

TR 2 B

Group
AEEH

AARE - REREMWER

BT -

Terms
EE

2014
—g-pF
HK$'000
FRT

2013
T —=%F
HK$’000
FExT

Company A
~AIA

Company B
NS

Company C
~AIC

Guaranteed by a third-party, interest
bearing at 4.8% per annum and
repayable on 9 January 2014

ME=FER  FRERL8% K
AR_ZT—ME—-RNRAER

Guaranteed by a third-party, interest
bearing at 1.25% per month and
repayable on 22 July 2014

ME=FHER - AFIER1.25% K&
AR-_E—MNELXA -+ _BEE

Guaranteed by a third party, interest
bearing at 1% per month and
repayable on 28 March 2015

HME=FER  ARER1% K
BARZE—RAF=A=+N\HEER

Unsecured, interest bearing at 1.25%
per month and repayable on 28 March
2015

EIEA - AFIER1.25%
BARZE—RAF=A=+N\HEER

5,002

38,453

3,837

4,090

43,455

7,927
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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PR R AR BT AE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

26.

27.

BANK AND CASH BALANCES

As at 31 December 2014, the bank and cash balances
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
HK$78,917,000 (2013: HK$105,778,000). Conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.

As at 31 December 2014, bank balances of
HK$27,504,000 (2013: HK$37,140,000) were restricted
for the purpose of settlement obligation as set out in
note 28.

BE_T—

26.

ME+—A=t—RIFE

RITRBESER
RZE—OE+=—A=+—H " &
SEUARBHEZRIRBESE
FR#E 78,917,000 T (ZFE— =4 :
105,778,000 7T ) o AR Xk
KB B ECH BISNE B IR 1601 ) (4
I - EERMNEEERE)

RZZE—NFE+_A=+—H - R17T
#E8227,504,0008 L (ZF—=4F :
37 140,000 7T ) 20 B 5 28 Fr it 5% R

FIAREEET -

TRADE PAYABLES 27. FESERR
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date AEFEZENEXR(REIERER
of receipt of goods, is as follows: FTE)ZRERANAT ¢
Group
rEH
2014 2013
—F-mF —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHAT
0 to 90 days 0£90H 10,919 4,394
91 to 180 days 91HZE180H 38 174
181 to 365 days 181H=2365H 785 373
Over 365 days 365H A 214 20
11,956 4,961
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables are RZE—=Fk=-_ZT—NFE+=-H

denominated in RMB as at 31 December 2013 and 2014.

HEEFXNEEERAR ¢ —F—

=t—H AEEERMERZEEE
UAARKE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

28. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

—T-MFE+-_A=+—HILFE

28. ARBAREMEMNK

Group

AEE
2014 2013
—Z-lmE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Settlement obligation (Note) HEEEE (T 27,504 37,140
Receipt in advance TEWRIA 2,599 7.880
Accruals TEIREA 4,246 3,374
Other payables H A FE TR 15,521 12,161
49,870 60,555

Note: Bk -

The settlement obligations are recognised upon issuance of
prepaid cards and receipt of respective funds. The amount
represents unused fund balances of the prepaid cards that the
Group obligates to remit to the contracted merchants when
cardholders make purchase transactions using the prepaid
cards. The settlement basis is normally the next business day
of the transaction date, except for certain merchants where
settlement term is negotiated on an individual basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE
29. BORROWINGS 29. &R
Group REE
2014 2013
—F-mE T =F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Bank loans RITER 625 -
The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are RZZE—WNF+=A=+—RH ' &%
denominated in RMB as at 31 December 2014. EERAAREEE -
The average interest rates at 31 December were as RTZA=+—8 " FEF=EET :
follows:
2014 2013
—F-mFE T =F
Bank loans IRITER 7.2% N/A 5
Bank loans of HK$625,000 are arranged at floating $R1TE 7,625,000/ T LA Z B F| R %2
interest rates and expose the Group to cash flow interest B AEEEAAXRERENERE
rate risk. % o
As at 31 December 2014, the Group's bank borrowings RZZE—WF+-A=+—0 " &%
were secured by personal guarantee of a non-controlling B 2 $R1T18 A — L FEIE AR AR B LA (R
shareholder. ANBERIEER -
30. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS/ANON- 30. E{ESE —RBHEBATZ

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER OF A
SUBSIDIARY

The amounts were unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.

— U IR RFARIE

AR REER - 2R NARENKIE

A
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

31. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

HE_T—NFE+_A=1+—HBLFE

31. ENA=RRE

PAYABLE
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E—-gF ==
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
As at 1 January n—H—H - -
Fair value of contingent consideration RS — IS4 M 2 FENT 3K
payable from acquisition of Onecomm  AREBAF(E(HFE37(a))
(Note 37(a)) 10,110 -
As at 31 December R+—A=+—8” 10,110 -

The contingent consideration payable as at year end
date represented the present value of the contingent
consideration for the acquisition of a subsidiary, which
was estimated based on level 3 measurement. Details
of the above are set out in note 37(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE
32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 32. ABRESF
The Company issued convertible bonds of principal RRARRZE—Z—ZF=A=+hBH%
amounts of HK$346,400,000 on 29 March 2012 to 7775 % 58 /4 346,400,0007%8 JT 2 7] i
Mighty Advantage Limited, which is wholly owned by REHTHBEEREEZEHREBZ
Mr. Guan Guisen. Mighty Advantage Limited °
Convertible bonds issued during the year ended 31 REE-Z——F+=-A=+—H1
December 2012 are convertible into 1,082,500,000 FEBEITZAIBRBRES TR RRE
ordinary shares of the Company at any time between the FRTBHEREIHE T —RF
date of issue of the convertible bonds and maturity date +ZA=+—H - BEERLRAER
of 31 December 2015. 2711,082,500,000% & 3@ AT o
The movement of convertible bonds during the year REEZE-Z—NF+=-A=+—H1
ended 31 December 2014 is set out below. FERBRES 2 FEWT o
Group
AEE
Equity Liability
component component
EEBo =N
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=%F—H—H 11,711 73,409
Imputed interest charged for the year ZANFEHEF]E
(Note 10) (FF7E10) - 13,187
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+—A=+—H 11,711 86,596
Conversion during the year FRH B (11,711) (96,310)
Imputed interest charged for REFEHEERE
the year (Note 10) (BtEE10) - 9,714
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NF+=H
=+—H - -
During the year ended 31 December 2014, all outstanding REZE-_Z—NF+=-A=+—H1
convertible bonds were converted into 375,000,000 FE - TARRTEZ AT RRESE
ordinary shares of the Company. AR AR)2375,000,0008% L AL o

HEEF X NEEERAR ¢ —T—FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

32.

130

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (contd)

The interest charged for the year is calculated by applying
effective interest rates of 17.95% (2013: 17.95%) and
zero coupon rate (2013: zero) to the liability components.

The directors estimate the fair value of the liability
component of the convertible bonds at 31 December
2013 to be approximately HK$88,659,000. The fair value
of the liability component of the convertible bonds is
within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The fair value
has been calculated by discounting the future cash flows
at 16.34%.

The principal amount of convertible bonds outstanding at
31 December 2013 was HK$120,000,000.
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32. EREF#)

FRAFEHAZ IR ABESD UNERF
K17.95%(ZF—=4F :17.95% ) &%
TE[MAMR(ZE—=F: T)zt& -

BEGF RZE—=+=_A8
=+—H8  JgREFEETH A
& 4 /% 88,659,000 7T ° A #1 %
BEEBEBHZAFEBRAFE
BRI ZE=ZF - WAFEDBRIZ
16.34% MR R R\ S HEZ ARG

Sets
H o
e

RNRZE—=F+-A=+—HBk17&E
Al & % 2 N4 %8 4 120,000,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

33. DEFERRED TAX

HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE

33. EERIE

The followings are the deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised by the Group.

AT RAREER ZELERIAEE,
(BfE) -

Deferred tax
liabilities of fair
value gain on
intangible assets
by acquisition of

Tax losses a subsidiary Total
EHWiE—REMEL Rz
BREERAFE
BEIN S Z
RIEEE BLEREHRAE &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00
FA&T FAET FA&T
At 1 January 2013 R-_Z—=%F—F—H 1,866 - 1,866
Exchange differences  [E =58 52 - 52
At 31 December 2013 RZTE—=%F
and 1 January 2014 +-A=+—8xkK
—ZE—-MFE—H—H 1,918 - 1,918
Addition from acquisition B U —FEHBARIRE
of a subsidiary - (1,076) (1,076)
Exchange differences  [EH =% (42) - (42)
At 31 December 2014 R _Z—H4F
+=—A=+—H 1,876 (1,076) 800

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$104,640,000 (2013: HK$65,969,000)
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of HK$7,503,000
(2013: HK$7,674,000) of such losses. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$97,137,000 (2013: HK$58,295,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. All unused tax
losses will expire on or before 2019.

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with undistributed
earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised is HK$30,589,000 (2013:
HK$35,753,000). No liability has been recognised in
respect of these differences because the Group is in a
position to control the timing of reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that such differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

RREHREEER AEEEAHH
TR F5E518104,640,0008 0 ( — T —=
% : 65,969,000 L) + A] A LA B
REHEF - LB EEBRELTH
T8 & 7,503,000 0 ( ZF—=4F :
7,674,0007% 7T ) B3 74 8 A 8 ORI R 2Rk
ISR+ L R BE &R T97,137,000%
THEREEMRBEE(ZS—=%F:
58,295,000/87T) ° FTEREAIEE
BER_Z—hEFHZREm e

RIFEHEAEE  BEWERIRIL
REBABZMBARRDREFIEE
< E = FEARTEH) /430,589,000 7T
(ZF— =4 : 35,753,000/ 7T) °
AR ASE B A H B O TR =5 2
M BBEEEEA R TER] KRR
Bl MY ERZEERREREME

f& e
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_T—NFE+_A=1+—HBLFE
34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. BAE
2014 2013
—E-NE “E-=F
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RAEE 8 RiHEE 8
Note ‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
4 TR THET Tt TAEL
Authorised: $E
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREBOETLL
LEm 20,000,000 200,000 20,000,000 200,000
Ordinary, issued and fully paid: T BEORAR
At 1 January R—A—H 4,707,139 47,071 4,707,139 47,071
Share issued under placing RN IRER €247 (a) 200,000 2,000 - -
Share issued under share option scheme RERIEHEIRESZ 36
817 103,367 1,034 - _
Share issued under convertible bonds A RIEFHKRES 32
E:h) 375,000 3,750 - -
Share issued under exercise of warrants {3 R E/TERMEE  35(c)(viil)
BB 220,000 2,200 - -
At 31 December R+ZA=1—H 5,605,506 56,055 4,707,139 47,071
Note: BiE -

132

(a) On 12 February 2014, the Company entered into a
placing agreement with CCB International Capital Limited
(the “Placing Agent”) pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to place, through the Placing
Agent, up to 200,000,000 placing shares at a price of
HK$0.64 per placing share. The placing was completed
on 20 February 2014 and the net proceeds from placing
was approximately HK$127,040,000.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

34.

35.

SHARE CAPITAL (Cont'd)

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maximise the return to the shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, if any, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies and processes
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is
that for the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock
Exchange it has to have a public float of at least 25% of
the shares. The Group receives a report from the share
registrars weekly on substantial share interests showing
the non-public float and it demonstrates continuing
compliance with the 25% limit throughout the year.

RESERVES

(a) Group
The amounts of the Group’'s reserves and
movements therein are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

HE

34.

35.

HEEF X NEEERAR ¢ —T—FFR

E-NFE+_A=+—HIFE

MR ()

AEBEEARETEZ BEREEAREE
ZIERERE S - AREEM A A
RBCRERER LA E MR SR A A
wmoRAE - WAKRRGKEER R -

AEBERBLBERRZZCLABE
EZRRRE - BEERZEBI LA
HE - BEFRHABEARE K&
% A 58 B R A T AR 2 B B KRR (4
B MEREBER - BEITHAREK
HEEBENREER NRBE-T
—HFE+ZA=t—BLLFE ZF
BiR - BRMIEFL SR ES o

762 1B 4 45 EL OB S BT _E T T 2 D
—HMEBIEIN EARRRK G - AEEA
REFEDL2BXBROD /S RARTRE -
AEBFERERNBPERLREEL
SIRER B IRE 2 EARMD SR
T AMEBRTAEEREEFER
FHEBT25% 2 PREE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_T—NFE+_A=1+—HBLFE
35. RESERVES (Cont'd) 35. &)
(b) Company (b) ZEATF
Share Share  Convertible
premium  Contributed option bondsequity ~ Warrant  Retained
account surplus reserve reserve reserve  profits/(loss| Total
TRRES  AREER REER/
RhRER  AARH% ERERE  BREE 1 (B8) aif
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
Thn ThL Thn L T T T
At 1 January 2013 R-F-=F-A-H 640,060 70,121 6,022 nm 523 284065 1012502
Total comprehensive income for ER2ENALE
the year - - - - - (47004 (247,104)
Share-based payments e - - 9173 - - - 9173
Release upon lapse of share  REREXREER
options - - (100) - - 100 -
Changes in equity for the year ~ F ek fkIE - - 9,073 - - (247004 (237,931)
At 31 December 2013 RZ5-=F
And 1 January 2014 TZA=t-BR
“E-ME-HA-H 640,060 70,121 15,09 nm 523 37,061 774571
Total comprehensive income for FRZEIALE
the year - - - - - (1415420 (141,542)
Issued from placing RERT 125,040 - - - - - 125040
Conversion of convertible bonds 3 AT E% 104,271 - - (11,711 - - 92,560
Exercise of warrants EARES 86,184 - - - (384) - 85,800
Exercise of share options TEERE 35,767 - (10959 - - - 24,808
Share-based payments K% fzE - - 4,463 - - - 4,463
Release upon lapse of share  REREXNEER
options - - (197) - - 197 -
Changes in equity for the year ~ ERiEZE 351,262 - (6,693  (11,711) (384)  (141345) 191,129
At 31 December 2014 RZE-IE
tZAz1-A 991,322 70,121 8,402 - 139 (104284 965,700
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

35. RESERVES (conta)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(1)

(1)

(iif)

(iv)

Share premium account

Share premium represents premium arising
from the issue of shares at a price in excess
of their par value per share and is not
distributable but may be utilised in paying
up unissued shares of the Company to be
issued to the shareholders of the Company
as fully paid bonus shares or in providing
for the premiums payable on repurchase of
shares.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group arose
as a result of the Group reorganisation
implemented in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares in 2000
and represented the excess of the then
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired, over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefore.

Share option reserve

The share-option reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for equity-settled share-based
payments in note 3(r) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the excess
of the fair value of the Group's share of net
assets over the purchase price. The amount
is retained in the consolidated statement
of financial position until the disposal of the
subsidiaries.

HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE

35. f#E&E®)

(c) EHEHEEREW

) REBER
Bn=ERAKRERAE
REEZEREITRD
FTEEXZRE - ZnE
AR - WARRAEA
B A AT AR QR R E
IR - BEAERER
AWRFEITTARRAR
R SEABLE R R D
JEAT 3 (B 2 Bt -

(i)  AZE
REBZHBARBRZ
SETFHREBELAQA
By EmmErT 2 &3
BHEMEE - BATIEE
B ARERZEA]
EFEBHARARR
BRZGEEEFEME
TRAHEEZ Z5 -

(i) FBREFE

BRREREEREBES
B 75 R 3R MRS () BhAR 4
EE R T RIBFTIR
MEFTER - BRER
AR TAEEES
ZARITEERESE 2
NFE -

iv) EAEE
BARREENEREN
BEFEZAFEBY
BEEBZEZE - 28R
REMBRRERRE
EZEMBRAREE A
[T

HEAF S NEEARAR e —T—NFFHK 135



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014

35. RESERVES (conta)

136

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Cont'd)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-
distributable, is appropriated from the
profit after taxation of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries under the applicable laws and
regulations in the PRC.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with accounting policies set
out in note 3(d) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Convertible bonds equity reserve

Convertible bonds have an option component
that enables the holder to convert them into
ordinary shares of the Company, and the
value of such option at inception is credited
to convertible bonds equity reserve. Upon
conversion, the balance will be transferred
to share capital and share premium account.

Warrant reserve

Warrant reserve represents the net proceeds
received from the issue of warrants of the
Company. The reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium accounts
upon the exercise of the warrants.

On 16 July 2012, the Company issued
300,000,000 unlisted warrants at an issue
price of HK$0.001743 per warrant pursuant
to a subscription agreement. Each warrant
entitles the holder to subscribe for one
ordinary share of HK$0.01 each at an initial
subscription price of HK$0.4 per share at
any time within 5 years commencing from
the date of issue of the warrants.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE BRI EE
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE
35. RESERVES (Contd) 35. f&fEE)
(¢) Nature and purpose of reserves (Cont'd) (c) MREMERBME)
(viii)  Warrant reserve (Contd) (viii) BB 1 (AF)
Movements in number of underlying shares % AR AH LR vE 4=
of the warrants: pd
2014 2013
—2-mFE T =
‘000 000
TR T8
At 1 January n—A—H 300,000 300,000
Converted during the year ESUNp g (220,000) -
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—H 80,000 300,000
Terms of unexpired and unexercised R EEEER - &k
warrants at the end of the reporting periods: I HA R R AT SR AR A 2
ZFHNT
Number of underlying
shares of the warrants
RREEEBEROEE
Date of issue Exercisable period 2014 2013
BITEH 1T —E—NF —ET—=F
16 July 2012 16 July 2012 to 15 July 2017 80,000,000 300,000,000
—E—_Ft+A+RAH = S R AN = Y

—E—t+HF+A+HH
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36.

138

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
3 May 2012, shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of a New Share Option Scheme.

Concerning New Share Option Scheme, the Company
operates it for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
include the full-time and part-time employees,
executives, officers, directors, business consultants,
agents, legal and financial advisers of the Company
and the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme became
effective on 3 May 2012 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 5 years from that
date.

Pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme, the
Company may grant options to the participants to
subscribe for ordinary share of HK$0.01 each, subject to,
when aggregated under this scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30%
of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant
of shares options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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36.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (cont'a)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a connected person, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess
of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determinable by the directors, and commences after
a certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not
later than five years from the date of the offer of the
share options or the expiry date of the New Share Option
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's
shares on the date of the offer of the share options;
(ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value
of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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36.

140

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (cont'a)

The fair value of share options granted is recognised
in profit or loss taking into account the probability that
the options will vest over the vesting period. Upon the
exercise of the options the resulting shares issued are
recorded as additional share capital at the nominal value
of the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per
share over the nominal value of the shares is recorded in
the share premium account. At the time when the share
options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve is transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve is transferred to
retained profits. Lapsed options, prior to their exercise
date, are deleted from the outstanding options. All equity-
settled share-based compensation expense is settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation
to repurchase or settle the options in cash.

The grantees may exercise the options in whole or in
part by giving exercise notice to the grantor at any time
during the option period provided that the grantees shall
exercise the options to acquire the option shares in
accordance with the following vesting schedule:

Vesting schedule

One year after the grant date 30%
Two years after the grant date 30%
Three years after the grant date 40%
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36.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (cont'a)

The following table discloses out details of the
Company’s share options under New Share Option
Scheme and the movements during the year ended 31

HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE

36. R (FFE =)
TE BB RAE 28 T AA B
BT S RERBE-_T—=4F
+=—B=t+—HIEEE

December 2013:
Number of share options
BREE
At Expired/ Exercised At
Exercise 1 January  lapsed during during 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period price 2013 the year the year 2013
RZZ-=% EREIH/ RZZ-=
= BE: i —A—H i FRE +ZA=t-H
New Share Option
Scheme
HERETE
Directors and Chief
Executives
EEYEHGIIN
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,840,000 - - 6,840,000
ZE-ZFt+ARA “E-ZFEtANAEZE-tEtATA 02587
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,840,000 - - 6,840,000
ZE-MELANBEZE-tFLATA 0.25%7
6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 9,120,000 - - 9,120,000
ZT-REEARBECTHELARA 0.2587
Other employees
HibfEE
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 54,477,000  (2,253,000) - 52,224,000
—E-—F+AKRA “E-=FtANAEZZ -+t ATR 02587
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 54,477,000  (3,036,000) - 51,441,000
ZTNELARBETHELARA 0.2587
6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 72,636,000  (4,048,000) - 68,588,000
e o = Sl g R 0.25%7T
Total share options By 204,390,000 (9,337,000) - 195,053,000
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (cont'a)

The following table discloses details of the Company’s
share options under New Share Option Scheme and the

movements during the year ended 31 December 2014

HE_T—NFE+_A=1+—HBLFE

36. R (FFE =)
TE BB RAE 28 T AA B
BT S  RERBE-_T—mE
+=—B=t+—HIEEE

Number of share options
EREHA
At Expired/ Exercised At
Exercise 1January lapsed during during 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period price 2014 the year the year 2014
R-B-ME  FRIE/ R=B-m&
RHAH T8 15E -B-H F3e EmfTE +=A=t-H
New Share Option
Scheme
HERETE
Directors and Chief
Executives
ESRARTBAR
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,840,000 - (600,000 6,240,000
—E-—F+AKA ZE-=FtANAEZZ -5t ATR 02587
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,840,000 - (600,000 6,240,000
“E-MELANAEZT -5 ATR 02587
6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 9,120,000 - - 9,120,000
ZE-RFLARAEZE—tELATR 0.25%87
Other employees
HibES
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 52,224,000 (482,000)  (51,506,000) 236,000
ZEZ-CELARA ZE-=E+ANAEZT -5t ATA 02587
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 51,441,000 (482,000) (50,661,000 298,000
ZE-WELARAEZE-tE AR 0.25%87
6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 68,588,000 (1,032,000 - 67,556,000
ZE-RFtLANBEZEtF AR 0.25% 7
Total share options EfEes 195,053,000  (1,996,000) (103,367,000) 89,690,000

If the options remain unexercised after a period of 5
years from the date of grant, the options will expire.

Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group.
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (cont'a)

HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE

36. RO AFRE @)

Details of the share options outstanding during the year FRRATEBREFBFOT
are as follows:
2014 2013
—2-mEF —EB—=F
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
share exercise share exercise
options price options price
BREHE MEFHTEE BEREZE  IETHETEE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Outstanding at the FYNEARITEE
beginning of the year 195,053,000 0.25 204,390,000 0.25
Exercised during the year FRTT{E (103,367,000) 0.25 - -
Lapsed during the year FRRK (1,996,000) 0.25 (9,337,000 0.25
Outstanding at the end of  FREKITE
the year 89,690,000 195,053,000
Exercisable at the end of ~ FZFKA] F17{E
59,064,000

the year 13,014,000

The options outstanding at the end of the year have a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.51 years
(2013: 3.51 years) and the exercise price of HK$0.25
(2013: HK$0.25).

R B AR TE RS ARAE 2 It 19 F
BANFRA2F(ZE—=4F:
3.51F)  MITHEER]A0.25E (=
T—=4:02587T) °
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (cont'a) 36. ROZARIE L)
Options under New Option Scheme were granted on FTERET B BN —_E——F
6 July 2012. The estimated fair value of the options +tARBER RZAREERES
granted on that date is HK$22,095,000. The fair value HEr A A £22,095,0008 7T ° AF
was calculated using the Binomial Option pricing model. BER-ZEXIETERNXGTE - KA
The inputs into the model are as follows: R ZEIBEAT

2012
—E——4F
Share price W1 BAR HK$0.25
0.25/&7T
Exercise price per share FRRITEE HK$0.25
0.25%57C
Expected volatility TEER I8 53.43%
Expected life BRI HA 5 years
5
Risk free rate f2 P S B 0.34%
Expected dividend yield FRER B X 0%
Expected volatility was determined by calculating the FBERBIR AR AR ERNAER
historical volatility of the Company's share price over the FrRLRERE - EXNAMAES

previous 5 years. The expected life used in the model FHRBREZEHFE -

144

was the contractual life of the options.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Acquisition of Onecomm

On 31 December 2014 (“Completion Date"),
the Group obtained control of Beijing Onecomm
Technology Company Limited (“Onecomm”) by
acquiring 51% of its equity interest and voting
rights. Onecomm is principally engaged in
provision of third party payment system solution
and sales of POS devices.

According to the capital contribution agreement
and incentive agreement dated 10 October 2014
entered into between the Group and the then
shareholders of Onecomm, the consideration of
the acquisition of Onecomm will be settled by way
of:

(i) injecting RMB8,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$10,004,000) to Onecomm before
Completion Date as registered capital;

(ii) allotting and issuing up to 41,234,166
ordinary shares of the Company to one
of the then substantial shareholder, Mr.
Sun Jiangning, depending on the financial
performance of Onecomm for the period
from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2016
("Guaranteed Period”). The number of
ordinary shares to be issued (“Contingent

BE-—T-mE+-—A=+—AItEE
37. FEBEERERKRME
(a) UWEE—1B3M
R-ZE—NF+=-_A=+—H
([5ERXBE]) » AEEUWELL

RIS MR BR R A ([ —
IS A M 1) 51% R A #E a5 e E
FORME - FEULEUS IS8 2
PRI - —ISTRMN T BH R
RETXNEGHTREREE
POSEE -

IRIE 7R &= B B — S 4 M & 5 AR
RFFFIZAHMA T —F+
H+ BRI ZE B % & 2R
B - WIS 2 R ERS

FBATHER -

(i) NGB EI FIIJ m —
ﬂ% %EP MiEE AR
800000075(7@%?56
10,004,000 7T ) 1 &
FAMEA

i) H|WF—BENARZZE
—NFELA—HE-ZE
—RNFE+ZA=+—H

AR ([RFBHAR ) 2 BF
BRI BBERETR

% 41,234,166 % A A 7]
TERTEP —(IER
FERRBEIZELAE -

Shares”) is subject to the adjustments 15317 E AR ([ AR
below: M DEEZRATERH

=’
For the six months ended 31 December 2014 AE=—F—FE+=—H=+—

Eﬁ/\@ﬁ
Scenario 1: in the event that the profit of Onecomm for the period is less than
RMB3,000,000, the Contingent Shares to be issued during the period

shall be zero;

B — fiig — ISt N HR P 1) A AR #63,000,0007T © FREAR T & 31T s AR
Scenario 2: in the event that the profit of Onecomm for the period is RMB3,000,000
or more, the Contingent Shares shall be 8,006,634;

B : fisg — IS 18N HA S 1) A A R 53,000,000 080 A |+ Z832178,006,634/% 3¢ AR

R
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HE_T—NFE+_A=1+—HBLFE

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 37. ZEREeREHRRMT L)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (conta)
(a) Acquisition of Onecomm (Cont'd) (a) WEE—WRIM(E)
For the reporting period ended 31 December 2015 BE-F—AF+-H=1+—
H 1F 37 & T
Scenario 1: in the event that the profit of Onecomm for the period is less than

146

R

Scenario 2:

BR=

Scenario 3:

BR="

Scenario 4:

B

Scenario 5:

BhE :

RMB3,000,000, the Contingent Shares to be issued during the period
shall be zero;
i — ISt HR PR A1) D 20 AR #£3,000,0007T + R EFR T & BT TEM AR

in the event that the profit of Onecomm for the period is RMB3,000,000
or more but less than RMB5,000,000, the Contingent Shares shall be
8,306,833 for the period;

i —IS 1B N EIRR F1 2 A R #3,000,0007T 2k PA_E1B A A R #65,000,0007T -
HAR 78 %4778,306,833 A8 L AR 1D

in the event that the profit of Onecomm for the period is RMB5,000,000
or more but less than RMB7,000,000, the Contingent Shares shall be
16,613,766 for the period;

i — ISt EIRs= 51 2 A R #5,000,0007T 2k PA_E1B A A R #7,000,0007T -
HANZE%47716,613,766/% 3k SARK(D

in the event that the profit of Onecomm for the period is RMB7,000,000
or more but less than RMB9,000,000, the Contingent Shares shall be
24,920,649 for the period;

W —IS 1B NI F1 3 A R #7,000,0007T 2k PA_E1B A A R #69,000,0007T -
HARZE%51724,920,6498% 3k SRR (D

in the event that the profit of Onecomm for the period is RMB9,000,000
or more, the Contingent Shares shall be the remaining balance of
41,234,166.

fii — IS4 M ER & 71 A A R 69,000,0007T + BRRZEEE1TRR T41,234,166% 3%
SRR o
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HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 37. ZEREREBRMT @)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (conta)
(a) Acquisition of Onecomm (Cont'd) L — IS 3R N (42
For the reporting period ended 31 December 2016 BEZF—F1TZA=4—
H 1F 37 & T
Scenario 1: in the event that the profit of Onecomm for the period is less than
RMB20,000,000, the Contingent Shares to be issued during the period
shall be zero;
BR—: s — IS 4 M BB A1) 7 A R #620,000,0007T - AERAI A& B TR S AARRD
Scenario 2: in the event that the profit of Onecomm for the period is RMB20,000,000
or more, the Contingent Shares shall be the remaining balance of
41,234,166.
B : s — IS e M A 033 ) A A R #620,000,00070 80 A £+ 7B 357783 T41,234,1660%

SRR -

Details of the Group's acquisition of Onecomm
were set out in the Company’s announcement and
circular dated 10 October 2014.

For the six months ended 31 December 2014,
the profit of the Onecomm was less than
RMB3,000,000, therefore no Contingent Shares
shall be allotted. The outstanding Contingent
Shares as at 31 December 2014 was 41,234,166.

The acquisition is for the purpose of strengthening
the Group’s third party payment system business
in the PRC.

AR BB — IS M 2 RIS B
RARF —ZE—ME+HA+H
NE K o

HEZZ—NF+-_A=1+—
HIERM@EA - — BN 2% F
L AR #3,000,0007T © A
it - BARBESARD - RZ
TZ-—NE+_A=+—8 -
41,234,166 8 s AR 1D B2 1T 1E
4 o

WHEE MR ARERFE
F=N XN RRET -
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37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (contd)

(a)

Acquisition of Onecomm (Cont'd)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Onecomm acquired as at its date of

acquisition is as follows:

HE_T—NFE+_A=1+—HBLFE

37. GZEBEEREHRRMZT 2

(a) WEE—RsME)

o4 82 [0 R MBS ) B 2 — 18
N TR EE R B S AT E

e

HK$'000
FET
Net assets acquired: B & E/FE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB K& 797
Intangible assets — technology know-how & E — AN
(Note 19) (M47E19) 7,757
Inventories FE 5,631
Trade receivables FEUBR TR 8
Prepayments, deposit and other receivables TERRUE - e RE M EIGK 2,546
Bank and cash balances IRITNIRS AR 11,704
Trade payables FERTRRER (6,135)
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A R HALEN K (6,256)
Due to a non-controlling shareholder JEAST— R FEVEAR AR B FRIB (666)
Borrowings fBx (625)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEBE (1,076)
13,685
Non-controlling interests FEIEIRE A (6,657)
6,928
Goodwill allocated to Onecomm CGU (Note 20) D EEE—IE N IR G EABEA
2 B (MEE20) 13,186
20,114
Satisfied by: IATE A E
Cash consideration injected as capital M B AR EEIEREARY
to the subsidiary HEKRE 10,004
Contingent consideration payable (Note 31) e S ARE (FFFE31) 10,110
20,114
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WEEEZIRERAFE
Cash consideration HeRE (10,004)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriE 2 B e MR EEY 11,704
1,700
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (contd)

(a) Acquisition of Onecomm (Cont'd)
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of
Onecomm is attributable to have better control
over the sale of POS devices and related services.
Onecomm did not contribute revenue and loss for

the year to the Group.

The fair value of 41,234,166 ordinary shares of
the Company issued as part of the consideration
paid was determined with reference to the closing
market price of the Company's ordinary shares on

the Completion Date.

The fair value of contingent consideration payables
at the Completion Date represents the present
values of the Contingent Shares expected to be
issued during the Guaranteed Period, which was
estimated based on the expected net profit of
Onecomm during the Guaranteed Period. The
valuation was prepared by an independent valuer,

Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited.

Key inputs used in the fair value measurement of
the contingent consideration are as follows:

Unobservable inputs

FABERARE

HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE

37.

SEEEREHRRMT 2

(a)

W hE — IS N (42)

WiE— IS MELE ZEmERS
HPOSKEIHE MAMRS 2
BORIRGIRE o — NS4 I
REE/AKE S REM S
K B8

NN A E 17 41,234,166 %
TR ATFEASHEMNR
B WARSELARQG LR
MK BBz WHERET -

RERk B RN RAREZA
FERBEHRSRRERBEET
ZHARBANBRE - TR — IS4
MDA R 78 BA R A 2 TR R AR )
At MERBIEEM(FE
AHEBRABDMEL -

IARRERXFEAEMBEA
ZURAH

As at Completion Date
M5k B H#A

Expected net profit (Note i)
TRERAE R (5T

Discount rate applied (Note ii)
PfTE PR 2 BH 2R 2 (P i)

Average simulated share price under Monte Carlo Method

(Note iii)
SR AR IE (BT

RMB6,005,653
AE#6,005,6537C

3.75%
3.75%

HK$0.62

0.62/87T
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (contd)

150

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of Onecomm (Contd)

Note i Expected net profit for Contingent Shares is
based on the Directors’ best estimate and
weighted probability analysis for Onecomm.

Note ii:  Discount rate is derived by applying a risk-free
interest rate plus the credit spread.

Note iii: ~ Average simulated share price are estimated

based on the historical volatility of the share
price of the Company’s ordinary shares listed
on the Stock Exchange.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January
2014, total Group revenue for the year would
have been HK$85,492,000, and loss for the year
would have been HK$162,329,000. The proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is
not necessarily an indication of the revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2014, nor is intended
to be a projection of future results.

Acquisition of Kanghui

On 5 March 2013, the Group obtained control of
Kanghui (Note 21) by acquiring further 70% of
equity interest of Kanghui for a cash consideration
of HK$3,486,980 (equivalent to RMB2,800,000).
Kanghui was principally engaged in travellers
related services.

The acquisition was for the purpose of
strengthening the Group's travellers related
services business in the PRC.

China Innovationpay Group Limited ® Annual Report 2014

HE

37.

—T-MFE+-_A=+—HILFE

SEEEREHRRMT 2

(a)

(b)

W B — IS 1 M ()

s SRR 2 FEEIRERI TR
BEE 2 B R
RO ADREIE R AT M1t o

Bfeki: AR EIEEBRAER R

NMEIMEEREESHE -
Bfsii : REFHRERARFE
PR X AT BT BB 2 B
ERERE TGS

WRBER —_T—NF—A—
HEMK @ AEBFRKSHE
#5 585,492,000 7T © MF R
E 18458 R 5162,329,000 7%
T BEARHEEHARR
WIERAASEEREDN =
T—MFE—F—BAxK2BER
TRAIEBRSEBZ Wm R EERE
1 T EHERRKRER ZTE

Al o

W B B N

W-ZE—=F=ZAAH A&
LAIR € X {8 3,486,980 /%8 7T
(fH&E » A R#2,800,0007T)
#— BB FEET70% I AR
W B ESEB R
(H3E21) - ERBEBRBRET
FRRARTS ©

WEEE MR A REN TR
iR AR B AR S 75



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE-2 WE+=A=+-ALEE

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 37. FEREREMKRM=E )
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (conta)
(b) Acquisition of Kanghui (Cont'a) (b) WIBERIE (&)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Kanghui acquired as at its date of

A B U B AT U R A
AR EERBEZ A FHER

acquisition was as follows: T
HK$'000
FHET
Net assets acquired: FTU B & B 3HE -
Property, plant and equipment M - BB RRE 291
Intangible assets — customer relationship B EE-BFPBE%

(Note 19) (FF5E19) 255
Trade receivables P‘EEHSZ@Et 6
Prepayments, deposit and other receivables TER IR - 1=e R E MR 1,623
Bank and cash balances ﬁEﬂ&fﬂi,“ BR 1,220
Trade payables FERTER K (20)
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A R EAER R (3,202)

73
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR R (4)
69
Goodwill allocated to travellers related SRERFRERBESEE
services CGU (Note 20) B2 g (MiEE20) 4,691
4,760
Satisfied by: AR5 R ER -
Cash e 3,487
Fair value of 25% equity interests in FEI825% A 2 A FE
Kanghui (Note 21) (MF5E21) 1,273
4,760
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: B EA RS M RS -
Cash consideration paid ENRERE 3,487
Cash and cash equivalents acquired g e MRS EED (1,220)
2,267

HEEFXNEEERAR ¢ —F—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (contd)

(b)

Acquisition of Kanghui (Conta)

The Group recognised a gain of HK$1,273,000 as
a result of measuring fair value of its 25% equity
interests in Kanghui held before the business
combination. No significant acquisition cost
incurred.

Kanghui contributed approximately HK$4,823,000
and HK$219,000 to the Group's turnover and loss
for the year ended 31 December 2013 respectively
for the period between the date of acquisition and
the end of the reporting period.

If acquisition had been completed on 1 January
2013, total Group turnover for the year ended 31
December 2013 would have been HK$143,666,000
and loss for the year ended 31 December 2013
would have been HK$278,982,000. The proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is
not necessarily an indication of the turnover and
results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2013, nor is intended
to be a projection of future results.

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

39.

152

As at 31 December 2014, the Group and the Company

did not have any significant contingent liabilities (2013:

Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group and the Company

did not have any significant capital commitments (2013:

Nil).
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WEEEE (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

PR R AR BT AE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_T—NF+_A=1+—HBLFE
40. LEASE COMMITMENTS 40. AL
At 31 December 2014, the total future minimum lease RZZE—NE+ZA=+—H " Ri&
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are TR REEC B E N 2 R R HIEME
payable as follows: EFIE@BENAT
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—EF-nmE —F—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within one year —FR 9,125 5,858
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FEERF
(BEEEMF) 30,381 17,519
Over five years BiBlRE 6,636 10,911
46,142 34,288
Operating lease payments represent rental payable by KEHEFIREASEREE THA
the Group for certain of its offices. Leases are negotiated EEMNzHS - HER -ZNFHHY
for terms of one to nine years and rentals are fixed over & e HBREE - BTEFASK
the lease terms and do not include contingent rentals. MM o
41. OTHER OPERATING COMMITMENT 41. HK&ERE
The Company's subsidiary, Beijing Shangyin Investment ARGz WEBAR (AREA(ER)
Consultancy Co. Ltd., entered into a purchase agreement WEFBBERAG) R _E—WOF+
on 15 October 2014. The subsidiary agreed to purchase RAT+HRBETERE RS - WEBAFE
goods from a supplier of at least HK$5,002,000 ER-ET-—ARAF—H—HEZZE—T1
(equivalent to RMB4,000,000) each month and not less F+-_A=Z+—HEBEAR—BH
than HK$62,525,000 (equivalent to RMB50,000,000) FE™ & A 8 B 545,002,000/ 7t (46
during the period from 1 January 2015 to 31 December & 1" A R #®4,000,0007T) k& FT
2015. 4 11062,5625,00078 T (HHER AR
50,000,0007T) 2 &%)
42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42. BEALRS

In addition to those related party transactions and
balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions and balances with its related parties during
the year.

HEEF X NEEERAR ¢ —T—FFR

B MBERREMBEHRE 2ME
AER B RERIN - AERERFAE
FEALHE MRS R iEsR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

42.

PR AR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_T—NFE+_A=1+—HBLFE
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont'a) 42. BEALXRZ (&)
2014 2013
—E-MF —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Card transaction levies received by a REAEE 2 —EBEERQF
related company on behalf of the Group WEZ <X 5EE 133 1,490
Service charge paid to a related ST -HEEEARZ
company R E (276) (551)
Settlement funds paid to the contracted —[ERAE R RIREKAEE
merchants by a related company on YR FETAEE 2
behalf of the Group HEES (48,482) (214,687)
Due from a related company included in  JfEU—EREE AT FIE
prepayments and deposits STATENFIERIES 250 256
Due from/(to) a related company FEW () —FE @A R
included in trade receivables/ FIE - T AR
(payables) (FERD) BRI 240 (353)

43.

44.

154

A director, Mr. Guan Guisen, has significant influence
over the related company.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 6 February 2015, the Company and Greater China
Select Fund (”“Subscriber”) entered into a Subscription
Agreement (“Agreement”). Pursuant to the Agreement,
the Company agreed to issue 530,000,000 unlisted
warrants at an issue price of HK$0.002 per warrant. Each
warrant entitled the Subscriber for one ordinary share of
HK$0.01 each at an initial subscription price of HK$0.72
per share at any time within 5 years commencing from
the date of issue of warrants.

On 5 March 2015, the Company and the Subscriber
entered into a Supplemental Agreement (”Supplemental
Agreement”) pursuant to which completion of the
Agreement shall be subject to and conditional upon
passing the resolution(s) at a general meeting of the
Company to approve the Agreement and the long stop
date for fulfillment of the conditions precedent under the
Agreement has been postponed to 31 May 2015.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2015.
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43.

44.

EEHERTEHZBEARNEEAXN
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wREHEEREH
RZE—RAFE=-_HAH  AAF)H
Greater China Select Fund([ 28
ADFTZRERZE([HE]) - BRI
W - AR EIRE AT R EE
0.0027% 70,2 #1718 %17530,000,000
MIELMRRIER - ZREZME T
RIBABRREBRITAMBRT AT
R Aa] B A B AR AR 19 0.7278 7T 2 9]
FPREBRE—BRSRMEELR.01E
T2 E B o
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B
Year ended 31 December
BET-A=t—HLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
“g-mF -¥-Zf C-%--f =-B2--F Z%-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx TERT TR TET TR
Restated
L]l
RESULT EF
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREER
Revenue gk 81,222 142,896 212,805 263,095 -
Cost of sales HEERA (46,173) (93173)  (131,374)  (177,992) -
Gross profit e 35,049 49,723 81,431 85,103 -
Other income HArd A 4,461 3,943 7,031 3,136 434
Selling expenses HEBHR (31,181) (19,911) (5,353) (8,469) -
Administrative expenses TBHY (60,675) (52,025) (45,681) (42,912) (12,720)
Other operating expenses HR 2Ry - - (6,000) (43) (6,167)
Impairment of amount due from e — R 2 N E]
an associate HIERE - (4,733) - - -
Impairment of investment in R—REBE R R
an associate RERE - - (822) - -
Impairment loss on Hiv R 2 R E
other receivables &8 - - - - (51,029)
Impairment of goodwill HERE (53,323) (228,787) (160,499) - -
Impairment of intangible assets B/REERE - (933) - - -
Equity-settled share-based payment  AR{E4EE R
SN (4,463) (9,173) (6,022) - (512)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR 2 W - - - 2,727 -
Gain on fair value change of i Sl =N E = N
investment in an associate FEES R - 1,273 - - -
Gain on revaluation of previous held  BEff LR R4 T
interest in jointly controlled entity B A R S - - - 8,451 -
Gain on fair value change of RS ARENTE
contingent consideration payable EHE - - 252,640 230,986 -
Gain on bargain purchase on business ¥#&AHZEBEUWE
combination Wi - - - 3,423 -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZER - - - (315) -

HEEF X NEEERAR ¢ —T—FFR
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T FHHEHE
Year ended 31 December
BZ+-RA=1-HLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-NE —E-=f —E-C-f —E——fF —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TER TERT TER
Restated
L]
Share of losses of: DEUATEFZ
B
Associates N - - - (100) -
Jointly controlled entity HEE E - - - (1.117) -
Finance costs BB A (9,714) (13,187) (12,371) (1,186) -
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BIA(EE),/ B (119,846) (273,810) 104,354 279,684 (69,994)
Tax FiE (3,740) (4,927) (12,757) (15,760) -
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REBEBECEERY

FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS  FR (&), 47 (123,586) (278,737) 91,597 263,924 (69,994)

DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEREEL
Profit/(loss) for the year from a BRI HEE R

discontinued operation FREF/ (B8) - - - 14,926 (80,029)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FRafl/ (&R - - - 278,850 (150,023)
Attributable to: UTFATREESS -
Owners of the Company AAREBA (122,724)  (279,352) 91,362 283,071 (148,983)
Non-controlling interests FEER R (862) 615 235 (4,221) (1,040)

(123,586) (278,737) 91,597 278,850 (150,023)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EE 8ER

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS ~ JriZpRiEz

TOTAL ASSETS BEE 1,105,536 987,578 1,251,850 1,408,008 296,250
TOTAL LIABILITIES BafE (77,212) (163,593) (190,100) (617,710) (202,401)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS SRR (6,502) (707) (88) 147 (43,012)

1,021,822 823,278 1,061,662 790,445 50,837
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